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Independent Auditor's Report

e
EY

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Dragon
Mining Limited
(incorporated in Australia with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

11 Mounts Bay Road

Perth WA 6000 Australia

GPO Box M939 Perth WA 6843

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Dragon Mining Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(the Group) set out on pages 141 to 226, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing issued by the International Federation
of Accountants. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants and the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants (collectively the “Codes”) that are relevant
to our audit of the financial report. We have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Codes.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

Fa I AZE AR (B0

Bt EIE
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consolidated financial statements.
Carrying value of inventories

Why significant
HAEE

FEREEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

HANBAUNAENZARESER

As disclosed in Note 6, the Group held inventories as
at 31 December 2020 of AU$16.114 million, which
related to ore and concentrate stockpiles, gold in
circuit, raw materials and stores.

Inventory is a significant asset which requires
judgement in determining an appropriate costing basis
and assessing if the carrying value is recorded at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Accordingly, we
considered the carrying value of inventories to be a
key audit matter.

W LTI 88 fR20204E12H31H BEENEE
BIEFREAE R R AE T E S B RFEEF &
16.114H BT

FEE HEEEE 7R EE [ R B
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IR > T8 S0 H Il o TR > MR 2 F B IR ENE(E
J& B SE R RS o

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A RS A

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s
processes in respect of inventory valuation.

We assessed the accuracy of the Group’s inventory
valuation model including the costs, assumptions
and methodologies used in the model for ore and
concentrate stockpiles, and gold-in-circuit.

We selected a sample of raw materials and stores
inventory items to evaluate whether, based on their
nature, costs were correctly determined and allocated.

We re-performed calculations to confirm that
inventories were recorded at the lower of cost and net
realisable value, including evaluating gold price and
cost to complete assumptions.

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in Note 6 — Inventories.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Cont’d)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Recognition and measurement of rehabilitation provisions

Why significant
RHABE

Fa A% BT (D)

B FIE (B
EERFERIRTE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BANEANMAEYZAREASTE

As disclosed in Note 12, the Group recorded
rehabilitation provisions totalling AU$19.189 million
as at 31 December 2020 relating to the mine sites and
processing facilities in Sweden and Finland.

As disclosed in Note 1(s), the calculation of these
provisions required judgment in estimating the future
costs, the timing as to when the future costs will be
incurred and the determination of an appropriate rate
to discount the future costs to their present value.
The Group reviews rehabilitation obligations that
have arisen semi-annually, or as new information
becomes available, including an assessment of the
underlying assumptions used, effects of any changes
in local regulations, and the expected approach to
rehabilitation.

R E1 2P 28 > 7220204E12 A31H » BEEEEHEW
EERMEF SO 7519.189F BT F A I HLAD 55 6al
B 35 A0 0 T 5%t
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DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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We evaluated the legal and/or constructive obligations
with respect to the rehabilitation for all mine sites
and processing facilities, the intended method of
rehabilitation and the associated cost estimates.

We assessed the Group’s calculation of the
rehabilitation cost estimates and obtained evidence to
support material movements during the year.

We assessed the competence, capability and
objectivity of the external experts who compiled the
data that supported the cost estimates and provisions
and considered the appropriateness of their work in
conducting our procedures.

We assessed the accuracy of the calculations used to
determine the rehabilitation provision including the
economic assumptions applied.

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
relating to the recognition and measurement of
rehabilitation provisions in Note 12 - Provisions.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A RS A
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Independent Auditor's Report (Cont’d)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
International Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A R S A
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Jemma K Newton.

Ernst & Young
Perth, Western Australia
25 March 2021

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Revenue from customers
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other income

Exploration expenditure

Management and administration
expenses

Exploration written off

Operating expenses

Finance costs

Foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit after income tax

Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of
the parent (cents per share)

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A R S A

2 AL
EetE

202012 H31 HIFEE
2020 2019
20205 20194F
Note AU$’000 AU$’000
B FET T
B PN 20 69,255 53,073
FHE AR 2(a) (51,599) (42,208)
EH 17,656 10,865
HAb I 25 2(b) 12 73
AU A 2(c) 314 1,136
IE gl (626) (60)
EHEMATERI
2(d) (4,269) (4,914)
VS e 2(d) (2,381) -
e 7 B S 2(d) (175) (83)
A 7 1R 2(e) (133) 210)
AN A (B548) 111 (496)
pRAG EI A 10,509 6,311
Pt 15 6 i 2 3 (316) -
IREFIGR & RF 10,193 6,311
BAGEERIFEA
ELEREH (Il 5R)
B 1% FE A E F) 18 7.34 4.55
1o PR 40 e 7 R 18 7.34 4.55
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Profit after income tax (brought forward)

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income to be

reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations

Net other comprehensive loss

to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income
for the period

Profit attributable to:
Members of Dragon

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Members of Dragon

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A RS A

wie HAth i a2k

202012 H31 HIFFEE
2020 2019
20205 20194F
AU$’000 AU$'000
FiRT FHIT
FREFIGIEEF (EaD) 10,193 6,311
Hih2mEWA
AR A B EH I E
ARSI M 2 EIA -
MG AN ZE TS R Y BE 57 22 A
(79) (394)
BHHEBHAREHPESE
EEMNEMEEEERE
(fR1&:3%) (79) (394)
A2 EURALEEE
10,114 5,917
LT AL EMEER :
FEE R AR 10,193 6,311
10,193 6,311
UTFTALTEEZEWALELE:
FE & TR A% R 10,114 5,917
10,114 5,917
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Other assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

Mineral exploration and evaluation costs

Right-of-use assets
Other assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Interest bearing liabilities
Other liabilities

Current tax liability

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

Interest bearing liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

hEEE
B4 By B4 2 (E )
%%&ﬁ@ﬁw 7 I
Hua

RBEEMRE

IERBEE

UEN S
il 725 B 1% B AT AR
&
HoAth & E

IERBEEME
BEME

mRE}EE
& 5 Je HAIE A RO
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Eﬂﬁﬁﬁtlﬁﬁﬁ
REBREEE
IEREBEE

HAth & &
IEREEEEEE
BEEE
BERE

SR e A BSIRILAR

#R20204FE12H31H

N th
(N

N O Ul

11
12
13

12
13

14
15

2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$'000
FHT FHIT
14,352 8,182
6,278 5,949
16,114 16,684
209 163
36,953 30,978
38,534 33,347
3,989 8,699
377 320
5,544 5,289
48,444 47,655
85,397 78,633
6,548 7,049
2,351 2,263
147 65
321 226
303 -
9,670 9,603
19,025 19,114
3,217 6,535
7 17
22,249 25,666
31,919 35,269
53,478 43,364
133,991 133,991
(496) (417)
(80,017) (90,210)
53,478 43,364

Arthur G Dew
KRR
Director

HF

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Brett R Smith

Director

EHF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity %7
For the year Ended 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Profit after income tax
for the period
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive profit
for the period

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2020

Profit after income tax
for the period
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive profit
for the period

At 31 December 2020

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A RS A

120191818
HIMER R AR B A
HtrZzmgA

B R AR

2019128310

#2020F181H

BRI A
Hit 2wk

P9 2T A

120205128318

A v Ea
A SR B %
#BE20204F12 31 HILFE
Equity
Reserve
Convertible  Purchase of
Foreign Note Non-
Contributed ~ Accumulated Currency Premium  controlling Total
Equity Losses Reserve Reserve Interest Equity
El32did 4
AEILRE s
BRRE RAER  MERE O BEEEE REBE xS
AUS$'000 AUS$'000 AUS$'000 AUS$'000 AUS$000 AUS$'000
THT T THT THT T T
133,991 (96,521) (3,160) 2,068 1,069 37,447
- 6,311 - - - 6,311
- - (394) - - (394)
- 6,311 (394) - - 5,917
133,991 (90,210) (3,554) 2,068 1,069 43,364
133,991 (90,210) (3,554) 2,068 1,069 43,364
- 10,193 - - - 10,193
- - (79) - - (79)
= 10,193 (79) = = 10,114
133,991 (80,017) (3,633) 2,068 1,069 53,478




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees
Payments for mineral exploration
Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment
Payments for development activities
Payment of bonds
Refund of bonds

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Lease liability payments

Repayment of loan facility
Drawdown from loan facility

Net cash (used in)/from
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash

and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the period

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A R S A

e Bl RiER

202012 H31 HIFEE
2020 2019
20205 20194F
Note AU$’000 AU$’000
B FET T
KETHHRER=E
& E-4=F- 9| 68,539 53,196
I 14 JEE 7 e (i B A5 AR (47,056) (45,345)
AR E B R 3R (567) (59)
EFE 12 66
HEBH (154) (237)
RETESIREFEE 4 20,774 7,621
KREZHEER=
TRV WS B R AT R
(3,632) (6,983)
HEWHE - WS b
P {5 7k IH 2(c) 2 1,113
B A TS BT X (7,667) (6,431)
EHAT (23) -
EHER = 17
KREEHFMAREFE (11,320) (12,284)
MEEHREESRE
HE & E T (101) (30)
B ER (3,000) =
TR BE K = 2,000
REEE (FRA)
FRiSIR&FEE (3,101) 1,970
HERBEEEEYEM
GRE2L) $%8 6,353 (2,693)
YIRS R RS % EY
8,182 10,905
PEE R 8 By Y B <
HEE BN w2 (183) (30)
BHRRERREEFEY
4 14,352 8,182
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146 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements sSEEMBERERMEE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY 1. 2AREBREFESHHEHRE
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)  Reporting Entity a) WREEBR
Dragon Mining Limited (the “Company” or the FEERARAR (TRAR ) B
“Parent Entity”) was incorporated as an Australian (BN AT ) R19904F4H23 H
Public Company, limited by shares on 23 April SE A AL 2 — R R A R A
1990, and is subject to the requirements of the A R ARA A A HE ST
Australian Corporations Act 2001 as governed HI2001FE A FFERI R E » H
by the Australian Securities and Investments BNEZ AR EEREE SR
Commission. The Company is domiciled in & o AN AR N 5 R AL
Australia and its registered office is located at HCEE A S R A2 7R Unit 202,
Unit 202, Level 2, 39 Mends Street, South Perth, Level 2, 39 Mends Street, South
Western Australia 6151 Australia. Perth, Western Australia 6151
Australia °
The Consolidated Financial Statements for the #ZE2020F12H31 H ILFEER
year ended 31 December 2020 were authorised maMBHRE EREEEH
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the HA2021F3H25 H LR &
Directors on 25 March 2021. P o
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the ARAFEHZE2020F12H31H
Company for the year ended 31 December IR R &R & T B R IR & A
2020, comprise the Company and its subsidiaries AN B H B A\ (iR 2 147
(together referred to as the “Consolidated Entity” GER SRR o AEH
or the “Group”). The Group is a for profit entity, HEBANEER FTENLHEES
primarily involved in gold mining operations i B 3 15 e < T B 7 © AR A
and gold mineral exploration. The Company has TR B 2~ R A BB e 4%
direct and indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all FE 2 0 2= E0 Y9 B B A i
of which have substantially similar characteristics RS Y AL 2N ] K B (R A 4F
to a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, B FEERSIAR
the particulars of which are set out below:
Place and date of
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of
registration and issued ordinary equity attributable Principal
Name place of operations share capital  to the Company activities
SEMARIL, Rt B R BR1T NG|
218 AR & B B LERANEE EERFESLH TEEH
Dragon Mining Investments Australia - 100% Dormant
Pty Ltd 18 December 2008 YRER
Dragon Mining Investments bl
Pty Ltd 2008FE12H18H
Dragon Mining Sweden SEK 100,000 100%  Gold Production
(Sweden) AB 27 April 1993 100,000 84 5. FA BREE
Dragon Mining it 8t
(Sweden) AB 19934F4H27H
Viking Gold & Sweden SEK 100,000 100% Dormant
Prospecting AB 3 April 1996 100,0005 5 52 A YmES
Viking Gold & B it
Prospecting AB 19964 H3H
Dragon Mining Oy Finland EUR 100,000 100%  Gold Production
24 March 1993 100,0008% 7T HeE
Dragon Mining Oy il
19934E3H24H
FEETRAMRAF Hong Kong HK$1.00 100% Dormant
(Dragon Mining Limited)’ 17 May 2017 1.007 7T B SRS
B IRA A it
(Dragon Mining Limited)’ 20174E5H17H
Z For translation purposes ! LRI A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

b)

Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are general
purpose financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

All 1FRSs effective for the accounting period
commencing 1 January 2020 and during, have
been adopted by the Group and, except as
noted below, accounting policies have been
consistently applied throughout all periods
presented. The adoption of the new and revised
standards and interpretations effective 1 January
2020 had no material impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. The
Group'’s accounting policies have been updated
to reflect the new standards where applicable.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Australian dollars (“AUD”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise specified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

c)

Basis of Consolidation

Control is achieved when the Company is
exposed, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

Specifically, the Company controls an investee if
and only if the Company has:

. power over the investee (i.e. existing rights
that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

o exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee;
and

. the ability to use its power over the

investee to affect its returns.

When the Company has less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights in an investee,
the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

. the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

. rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

. the Company’s voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The Company re-assesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Company obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Company
loses control of the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

c)

Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)

The income, expenses, assets and liabilities of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the Company’s Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss or the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position from the date
the Company gains control until the date the
Company ceases to have control.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Company’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members
of the Company are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Company loses control of a subsidiary, the
Company:

. derecognises the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

. derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest;

. derecognises the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity;

. recognises the fair value of any investment
retained;

. recognises the fair value of the consideration
received;

. recognises any surplus or deficit in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss;
and

. reclassifies the Company’s share of

items previously recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss or retained
earnings as appropriate.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost
less impairment in the Company’s Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

d)

e)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer. The
Group recognises revenue from the sale of gold
bullion and concentrate when control of the
product has transferred to the customer.

Concentrate sales

Concentrate is sold to a third-party through a
standard Incoterm Delivery-At-Place (“DAP”)
agreement. Once the concentrate has been
delivered, the Group has met its performance
obligations and control passes. Revenue
is recognised based on the estimated final
settlement price and is determined with reference
to the forward gold price. Adjustments are made
for variations in assay and weight between
delivery and final settlement. The final settlement
price received is based on the monthly average
London Metal Exchange (“LME”) gold price
for the month following delivery. Adjustments
relating to quotational period pricing are
recognised and measured in accordance with the
policy at note 1(h).

Bullion sales

Bullion is sold on the market through the Group’s
metal account. The only performance obligation
under the contract is the sale of gold bullion.
Revenue from bullion sales is recognised at a
point in time when control passes to the buyer.
This generally occurs when the Group instructs
the refiner to transfer the gold to the customer
by crediting the metal account of the customer.
As all performance obligations are satisfied at
that time, there are no remaining performance
obligations under the contract. The transaction
price is determined at transaction date and there
are no further adjustments to this price.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense or benefit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the national income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted for changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to the
temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the Consolidated Financial Statements and for
unused tax losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

e)

Income Taxes (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for
all taxable temporary differences:

. except where the deferred income tax
liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and at the
time of the transaction affects neither the
accounting or taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry-forward
of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the
extent it is probable that a taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry-forward of unused tax
assets and unused tax losses can be utilised:

. except where the deferred income
tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interests in associates,
deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

e)

f)

Income Taxes (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset
to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realised, or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset only if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxable authority.

Tax consolidation legislation

The Company implemented the Australian tax
consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2003.
The Company has applied the group allocation
approach in determining the appropriate amount
of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to
members of the tax consolidated group.

Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net
of the amount of GST except:

. where the GST incurred on a purchase of
goods and services is not recoverable from
the tax authority; and

. receivables and payables are stated with
the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the tax authority is included as part
of receivables or payables in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

f)

g)

Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) (Cont’d)

Cash flows are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and
the GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities, which is
recoverable from or payable to the tax authority,
classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed
net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the tax authority.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Company is
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which that entity
operates. The Consolidated Financial Statements
are presented in Australian dollars which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rate prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or
loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

g)

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
(Cont’d)

Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the
subsidiaries of the Company (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that reporting
date;

] income and expenses are translated at

average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
rates prevailing on the transaction date,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

and

. all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any monetary items that
form part of the net investment in a foreign entity
are taken to Shareholders’” Equity. When a foreign
operation is sold, or borrowings are repaid the
proportionate share of such exchange differences
are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

h)

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at
their transaction price and other receivables at
fair value. Receivables that are held to collect
contractual cash flows and are expected to
give rise to cash flows representing solely
payments of principal and interest are classified
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Receivables that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. This category includes trade
receivables relating to concentrate sales that are
subject to quotation period pricing.

The terms of the concentrate sales contract
contain provisional pricing arrangements.
Adjustments to the sales price are based on
movements in metal prices up to the date of final
pricing. Final settlement is based on the monthly
average LME gold price for the month following
delivery (the “quotational period”). Movements
in the fair value of the concentrate debtors are
recognised in other revenue.

The group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit loss associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument. The Group always
recognises the lifetime expected credit loss for
trade receivables carried at amortised cost. The
expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated based on the Group’s historic
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as forecast conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other receivables measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognised lifetime expected
credit losses when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
on the other hand the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to expected credit losses within the
next 12 months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

h)

Trade and Other Receivables (Cont’d)

The Group considers an event of default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due or external sources indicate
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group. A financial asset is credit
impaired when there is evidence that the
counterparty is in significant financial difficulty
or a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event has occurred. The Group writes
off a financial asset when there is information
indicating the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery.

Inventories

Finished goods, gold concentrate, gold in circuit
and stockpiles of unprocessed ore have been
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed overhead expenditure.

Costs are assigned to stockpiles and gold in
circuit inventories based on weighted average
cost. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the cost to
sell. Consumables have been valued at cost less
an appropriate provision for obsolescence. Cost
is determined on a first-in-first-out basis.

Deferred Waste

As part of open pit mining operations, the Group
incurs stripping (waste removal) costs during
the development and production phase of its
operations.

When development stripping costs are incurred
expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost
of constructing the mine and subsequently
amortised over its useful life using a unit of
production (“UOP”) method. The capitalisation
of development stripping costs ceases when the
mine/component is commissioned and ready for
use as intended by management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

j)

Deferred Waste (Cont’d)
Stripping costs incurred in the production phase
create two benefits:

. the production of inventory; or
. improved access to future ore.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of
inventories produced in the period, production
stripping costs are accounted for as part of the
cost of producing those inventories. Where
production stripping costs are incurred, and the
benefit is improved access to future ore, the costs
are recognised as a stripping activity asset in
mine properties.

If the costs of the inventories produced and the
stripping asset are not separately identifiable,
an allocation is undertaken based on the waste
to ore stripping ratio (for the ore component
concerned). If mining of waste in a period occurs
more than the expected stripping ratio, the excess
is recognised as part of the stripping asset. Where
mining occurs at or below the expected life of
component stripping ratio in a period, the entire
production stripping cost is allocated to the cost
of the ore inventories produced.

Amortisation is provided using a UOP method
over the life of the identified component
of orebody. The UOP method results in an
amortisation charge proportional to the depletion
of the economically recoverable mineral
resources (comprising proven and probable
reserves) component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

k)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Mine Properties: areas in production

Areas in production represent the accumulation
of all acquired exploration, evaluation and
development expenditure incurred by or on
behalf of the Group in relation to an area of
interest in which mines are being prepared for
production or the economic mining of a mineral
reserve has commenced.

When further development expenditure,
including waste development, is incurred
in respect of a mine property after the
commencement of production, such expenditure
is carried forward to the extent that a future
economic benefit is established, otherwise such
expenditure is classified as part of the cost of
production. Amortisation of costs is provided
using a UOP method (with separate calculations
being made for each mineral resource).

The UOP method results in an amortisation
charge proportional to the depletion of the
economically recoverable mineral reserves.

The costs are carried forward to the extent that
these costs are expected to be recouped through
the successful exploitation of the Group’s mining
leases. The net carrying value of each mine
property is reviewed regularly and, to the extent
that it's carrying value exceeds its recoverable
amount, the excess is fully provided against in
the financial year in which it is determined.

Plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment
is carried at cost less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

k)

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
Plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The cost of an item of plant and equipment
comprises:

o Its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates;

. Any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management;
and

. The initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
on all items of property, plant and equipment
other than mining plant and equipment and land.
The depreciation rates used for each class of
depreciable assets are:

5-50%
4-33%

Other plant and equipment
Buildings

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and
amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Impairment

The carrying values of mine properties, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Refer to
note 1(n).

Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no further
future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss in the year the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

D

Mineral Exploration and Evaluation Costs
Exploration expenditure is expensed to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as
and when it is incurred and included as part
of cash flows from operating activities in
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.
Exploration costs are only capitalised to the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position if
they result from an acquisition.

Evaluation expenditure is capitalised to the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Evaluation is deemed to be activities undertaken
from the beginning of the definitive feasibility
study conducted to assess the technical and
commercial viability of extracting a mineral
resource before moving into the development
phase.

The criteria for carrying forward costs are:

. Such costs are expected to be recouped
through successful development and
exploitation of the area of interest, or
alternatively by its sale; or

. Exploration and/or evaluation activities in
the area of interest have not yet reached
a state which permits a reasonable
assessment of the existence or otherwise
of economically recoverable reserves and
active and significant operations in or in
relation to the area are continuing.

Costs carried forward in respect of an area of
interest which is abandoned are written off in
the year in which the abandonment decision is
made.

Farm Out arrangements

In respect of Farm Outs, the Company does not
record any expenditure made by the Farmee
on its account. Where there is capitalised
exploration expenditure it also does not
recognise any gain or loss on its exploration
and evaluation Farm Out arrangements but
redesignates any costs previously capitalised
in relation to the whole interest as relating
to the partial interest retained. Cash received
from the Farmee is treated as a reimbursement
of expenditure incurred (where expenditure is
capitalised) or gains on disposal if there is no
capitalised expenditure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

m)

n)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities normally of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts excluding any restricted cash.
Restricted cash is not available for use by the
Company and is therefore not considered highly
liquid (i.e. rehabilitation bonds).

For the purposes of the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are included within interest-bearing
loans and borrowings in current liabilities on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss. A cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that
generates cash flows that are largely independent
from other assets and groups. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the units and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

HE

#

i3

A

R 2 #A

AR e B HARIRE (D)

1. ARBEHKREIBEHBEREE (@)

m)

n)

REMREFEY

BB eFEYUETFEB
2 SRAT 28 R0 RO HAth 0 A
BN R B H A s =
18 5 BRLAN B DA SRATIE S
(AEREEMZREIB ) &
2N ) AN BE 5 F 32 BRI B 4
I 7 BR A1V 2 AR 2 i B 1
(AR R LRE ) -

e ReERERMS  RHE
R B FE PG LT E &
RUB & B B F E Y0 BROR 18
BHIRATE X - RITEF A
A BRI ERBAEET
RURF BB R AR

i

A BN S WG 0 ERHIE
BREE (FERRIERIEE E
BRAM) HO AR E - DU E 2 5 17
FEEMBETR WM& FEA
E%g% R =9 D N gl

e 5 5 Bl HL B < A B Y
AR TH EL 6 2 AT Wi [ < % R
RO ME S 18 - JRE RN R S
B R B ELE A
BRI EA R LRI R A E
7 B AH I B B 4 B B B/ T
A & AR A o B A AR B
37 T 52 Y R fEL s 1R 0 H o BiE X
Al - ESE A LUBD % 5F 5
(L& 7 B B 1E 7] 7 2 B9 BR
1B 281 I DUz LL e/ D i B A
(S B A A P L fth 5 7 A R
THI{E

—HEENB S ELHAA
W ] < 8 42 L o P (E(E B P
{EL TR B A A Y 3 v 3 O ©
TE 774l (6 B BRI &5 AKX
W & BF T 35 A Ak A9 5 T IR ]
{E B ik & 7 O A LR B9 AR Al
BB R Rt RAREZRME
G E A BAE -

Annual Report 2020
BT HEER

161



162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

n)

0)

p)

Impairment (Cont’d)

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised
cost due to their short-term nature and they are
not discounted. They represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to the Group prior
to the end of the financial year that are unpaid
and arise when the Group becomes obliged to
make future payments in respect of the purchase
of these goods and services. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition.

Payables to related parties are carried at the
principal amount. Interest, when charged by the
lender, is recognised as an expense on an accrual
basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) because
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the Group expects some or all the
provision to be reimbursed, for example under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income net of any
reimbursement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

) Provisions (Cont’d)

If the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

q) Interest Bearing Liabilities
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised
at fair value net of issue costs associated with the
borrowing.

After initial recognition, interest bearing liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.
Amortised cost is calculated considering any
issue costs, and any discount or premium on
settlement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the
Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss when
the liabilities are derecognised, as well as
through the amortisation process.

r) Employee Benefits
Wages, salaries and other short-term benefits
The liability for wages, salaries and other short-
term benefits is recognised at the present value of
expected future payments.

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised
in the provision for employee benefits and
measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected
future payments are discounted using market
yields at the reporting date on high quality
corporate bonds or national government bonds as
appropriate with terms to maturity and currency
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outflows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

r)

s)

Employee Benefits (Cont’d)

Superannuation

Contributions made by the Group to employee
superannuation funds, defined contribution
plans, are charged to the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss in the period employees’ services
are provided.

Restoration and Rehabilitation Costs

The Group records the present value of the
estimated cost of legal and constructive
obligations to restore operating locations
in the period in which the obligation is
incurred. The nature of restoration activities
includes dismantling and removing structures,
rehabilitating mines, dismantling operating
facilities, closure of plant and waste sites and
restoration, reclamation and revegetation of
affected areas.

An obligation arises when the asset is installed
at the production location. When the liability
is initially recorded, the estimated cost is
capitalised by increasing the carrying amount
of the related mining assets. Over time, the
liability is increased for the change in the present
value based on the discount rates that reflect
the current market assessments and the risks
specific to the liability. Additional disturbances or
changes in rehabilitation costs will be recognised
as additions or changes to the corresponding
asset and rehabilitation liability when incurred.

The unwinding of the effect of discounting on
the provision is recorded as a finance cost in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. The
carrying amount capitalised is depreciated over
the life of the related asset.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is calculated as
net profit attributable to members of the parent
divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

t)

u)

V)

Earnings Per Share (Cont’d)
Diluted EPS is calculated as net profit attributable
to members of the parent, adjusted for:

. Costs of servicing equity (other than
dividends);

. The after-tax effect of dividends and
interest associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares that have been recognised
as expenses; and

. Other non-discretionary changes in
revenues or expenses during the period
that would result from the dilution of
potential ordinary shares.

The result is then divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares and dilutive
potential ordinary shares adjusted for any bonus
element.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. There were no borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation during the year (2019: 3.9%).

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the
Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses
(including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other components of the same
entity). Operating segments results are regularly
reviewed by the Company’s chief operating
decision makers and are used to make decisions
about the allocation of resources and to assess
performance using discrete financial information.
This includes start-up operations which are yet to
earn revenues. Management will also consider
other factors in determining operating segments
such as the existence of a line manager and the
level of segment information presented to the
Board of Directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

V)

w)

X)

Segment Reporting (Cont’d)

Operating segments have been identified
based on the information provided to the chief
operating decision makers, being the executive
management team.

The Company aggregates two or more operating
segments when they have similar economic
characteristics, and the segments are similar in
each of the following respects:

. geographical location;

. national regulatory environment;

] nature of the products and services; and
o nature of the production processes.

Operating segments that do not meet the
quantitative criteria as prescribed by IFRS 8
Operating Segments are reported separately.
An operating segment that does not meet the
quantitative criteria is still reported separately
where information about the segment would be
useful to users of the financial statements.

Information about other business activities
and operating segments that are below the
quantitative criteria are combined and disclosed
in a separate category for “all other segments”.

Contributed Equity

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the
fair value of the consideration received by the
Company.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Fair Value

The Group measures financial instruments, such
as derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair values of financial instruments measured at
amortised cost are disclosed in note 23.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

X)

Fair Value (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

. in the principal market for the asset or
liability; or

] in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, if market participants act in their
economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

° Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

X)

y)

Fair Value (Cont’d)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Significant Accounting Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies, management has made the
following Judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Concentrate sales

With respect to concentrate sales, a receivable
is recognised when the concentrate is delivered
to the customer’s facility as this is the point in
time that the risks and rewards of ownership
are transferred, and the Group’s performance
obligations have been met in accordance with
the sales agreements. Adjustments are made
for variations in assay and weight between the
time of dispatch of the concentrate and time
of final settlement. The Group estimates the
amount of consideration receivable using the
expected value approach based on internal
assays. Management consider that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
due to a variation in assay and weight.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

y)

Significant Accounting Judgements (Cont’d)
Determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal and termination options

The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease
if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Group has lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. That
is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew or to terminate (e.g. construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

The Group did not include the renewal period
as part of the lease term of property. The periods
covered by termination options are included
as part of the lease term only when they are
reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Production start date

The Group assesses the stage of each mine under
development/construction to determine when a
mine transitions into the production phase, this
being when the mine is substantially complete
and ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

y)

z)

Significant Accounting Judgements (Cont’d)
Production start date (Cont’d)

The criteria used to assess the start date are
determined based on the unique nature of
each mine development/construction project,
such as the complexity of the project and its
location. Some of the criteria used to identify the
production start date include, but are not limited
to:

. level of capital expenditure incurred
compared with the original construction
cost estimate;

] completion of a reasonable period of
testing of the mine plant and equipment;

o ability to produce metal in saleable form
(within specifications); and

. ability to sustain ongoing production of
metal.

When a mine development project moves into
the production phase, the capitalisation of certain
mine development costs ceases and costs are
either regarded as forming part of the cost of
inventory or expensed, except for costs that
qualify for capitalisation relating to mining asset
additions or improvements. It is also at this point
that depreciation/amortisation commences.

Significant Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and
liabilities are often determined based on
estimates and assumptions of future events.
The key estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of certain assets and
liabilities within the next reporting period are:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

z)

Significant Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Cont’d)

Determination of mineral resources and ore
reserves

The determination of reserves impacts the
accounting for asset carrying values, depreciation
and amortisation rates, deferred stripping
costs and provisions for decommissioning and
restoration. The ore reserves, mineral resources or
mineralisation are reported in accordance with
the Aus.IMM “Australian Code for reporting of
Identified Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves”
(“the Code”).

The information has been prepared by or under
supervision of competent persons as identified
by the Code. There are numerous uncertainties
inherent in estimating mineral resources and ore
reserves and assumptions that are valid at the
time of estimation may change significantly when
new information becomes available. Changes
in the forecast prices of commodities, exchange
rates, production costs or recovery rates may
change the economic status of reserves and may,
ultimately, result in the reserves being restated.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had an
increase in its Resources and Reserves. Changes
in reported Reserves and Resources estimates can
impact the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment through depreciation, provisions for
mine rehabilitation, restoration and dismantling
obligations, the recognition of deferred tax
assets, as well as the amount of depreciation
and amortisation charged to the statement of
comprehensive income. However, quantification
of the future impact is not considered
practicable.

Mine rehabilitation provisions

The Group assesses its mine rehabilitation
provision half-yearly in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 1(s). Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for mine rehabilitation as there are
many transactions and other factors that will
affect the ultimate liability payable to rehabilitate
the mine site.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

z)

Significant Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Cont’d)

Mine rehabilitation provisions (Cont’d)

The ultimate rehabilitation costs are uncertain,
and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including estimates of the extent and
costs of rehabilitation activities, technological
changes, regulatory changes, cost increases as
compared to the inflation rates and changes in
discount rates. These uncertainties may result
in future actual expenditure differing from the
amounts currently provided. Therefore, significant
estimates and assumptions are made in
determining the provision for mine rehabilitation.
As a result, there could be significant adjustments
to the provisions established which would affect
future financial result. The provision at reporting
date represents the Group’s best estimate of the
present value of the future rehabilitation costs
required. The restoration activities in relation
to Svartliden and Orivesi are expected to
commence in 2022, once all necessary approvals
have been obtained.

Contingent liabilities

The Group assesses all open legal matters at each
reporting date to determine whether a provision
should be recognised or contingent liability
disclosed.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that
arise from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only on the occurrence or non-
occurrence of uncertain future events outside the
Groups control, or present obligations that arise
from past events but are not recognised because:

(@) it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or

(b) the amount cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow is
remote. The Group has disclosed the contingent
liabilities identified at year end in note 21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

z) Significant Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Cont’d)
Impairment of non-financial assets
In accordance with accounting policy note
1(n), the Consolidated Entity, in determining
whether the recoverable amount of its cash-
generating units is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal or value-in-use against which
asset impairment is to be considered, undertakes
future cash flow calculations which are based on
a number of critical estimates and assumptions
including, for its mine properties, forward
estimates of:

] mine life, including quantities of mineral
reserves and resources for which there is
a high degree of confidence of economic
extraction with given technology;

. production levels and demand;

. metal price;

o inflation;

] cash costs of production;

] discount rates applicable to the cash-

generating unit; and

. future legal changes and/or environmental
permits.

Impairment is recognised when the carrying
amount of the cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount for
each cash-generating unit has been determined
using the fair value less cost of disposal
approach, classified as level 3 on the fair value
hierarchy. Any variation in the assumptions used
to determine fair value less cost of disposal
would result in a change to the assessed
recoverable value. If the variation in assumption
had a negative impact on recoverable value, it
could indicate a requirement for impairment of
non-current assets.

Refer to note 8 for further discussion of the
current year impairment trigger assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

z)

Significant Accounting Estimates and
Assumptions (Cont’d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Australia,
Sweden, and Finland. The Group’s accounting
policy for taxation stated in note 1(e) requires
management’s judgement as to the types of
arrangements considered to be a tax on income
in contrast to an operating cost. Judgement is also
required in assessing whether deferred tax assets
and certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised
on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.

Deferred tax assets, including those arising
from un-recouped tax losses, capital losses and
temporary differences, are recognised only where
it is considered more likely than not that they
will be recovered, which is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits.
Deferred tax liabilities arising from temporary
differences in investments, caused principally by
retained earnings held in foreign tax jurisdictions,
are recognised unless the repatriation of retained
earnings can be controlled and are not expected
to occur in the foreseeable future.

Assumptions about the generation of future
taxable profits and repatriation of retained
earnings depend on management’s estimates of
future cash flows. These depend on estimates of
future production and sales volumes, operating
costs, restoration costs, capital expenditure,
dividends and other capital management
transactions. Judgements are also required about
the application of income tax legislation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

aa)

Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Issued but Not Yet Effective

The following accounting standards and
interpretations have been issued or amended but
are not yet effective. These standards have not
been adopted by the Group for the period ended
31 December 2020 and are outlined below:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16 (effective January 2021)

The amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all
hedging relationships that are directly affected
by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging
relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to
uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of
benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item
or the hedging instrument. These amendments
have no impact on the consolidated annual
financial statements of the Group as it does not
have any interest rate hedge relationships.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS
16 (effective 1 January 2022)

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment (PP&E), any proceeds of the sale of
items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling such items, and the
costs of producing those items, in profit or loss.
The Group has considered the impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements and assessed
that the effect of the new standard will be
minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

aa)

Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Issued but Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)
Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling
a Contract — Amendments to IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (effective 1 January 2022)
In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to
IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs
to include when assessing whether a contract is
onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply
a ‘directly related cost approach’. The costs that
relate directly to a contract to provide goods or
services include both incremental costs (e.g.,
the costs of direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of costs directly related to contract
activities (e.g., depreciation of equipment used
to fulfil the contract as well as costs of contract
management and supervision). The Group has
considered the impact on its Consolidated
Financial Statements and assessed that the effect
of the new standard will be minimal.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10
per cent’ test for derecognition of financial
liabilities — (effective 1 January 2022)

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. There is no similar amendment proposed
for 1AS 39.

An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The Group has considered the impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements and assessed
that the effect of the new standard will be
minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

aa)

Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Issued but Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)
Reference to the Conceptual Framework -
Amendments to IFRS 3 (effective 1 January
2022)

The amendments are intended to replace a
reference to a previous version of the IASB’s
Conceptual Framework (the 1989 Framework)
with a reference to the current version issued
in March 2018 (the Conceptual Framework)
without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments add an exception to the
recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the
issue of potential ‘day 2" gains or losses arising
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately. The
exception requires entities to apply the criteria
in IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the
Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a
present obligation exists at the acquisition date.
The Group has considered the impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements and assessed
that the effect of the new standard will be
minimal.

AIP IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards
— Subsidiary as a first-time adopter (effective
1 January 2022)

The amendment permits a subsidiary that
elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to
measure cumulative translation differences
using the amounts reported by the parent, based
on the parent’s date of transition to IFRS. This
amendment is also applied to an associate or
joint venture that elects to apply paragraph
D16(a) of IFRS 1. The Group has considered the
impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements
and assessed that the effect of the new standard
will be minimal.

AIP IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in Fair
Value Measurements (effective 1 January
2022)

The amendment removes the requirement in
paragraph 22 of IAS 41 that entities exclude cash
flows for taxation when measuring the fair value
of assets within the scope of 1AS 41.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

aa)

bb)

Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Issued but Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts (effective 1
January 2023)

This standard replaces IFRS 4, which
currently permits a wide variety of practices
in accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS
17 will fundamentally change the accounting
by all entities that issue insurance contracts
and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features. This standard is not
applicable to the Company as it is not an
insurance company.

IAS 1 current and non-current classification
(effective 1 January 2023)

On 23 January 2020, the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB or the Board)
issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (the
amendments) to specify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The Group has considered the impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements and assessed
that the effect of the new standard will be
minimal.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Changes in Accounting Policies on Adoption
of New and Amended Accounting Standards
and Interpretations

The Group has adopted all new and amended
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board
that are relevant to the Group and effective as at
1 January 2020.

The adoptions of these new and amended
Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not
impact the accounting policies or the financial
statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

2 OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND EXPENSES

(b)

(d)

(e)

Cost of sales

Cost of production net of
inventory movements

Depreciation of mine properties,
plant and equipment

Rehabilitation costs

Cost of production net of
inventory movements

Mining

Processing

Other production activities

Gold inventory movements

Cost of production net of
inventory movements

Other revenue
Finance revenue and interest
Rent and sundry revenue

Other income
Sale of property,

plant and equipment
Other

Operating expenses

Management and
administration expenses

Evaluation assets written off

Depreciation of non-mine
site assets

Finance costs
Interest
Other
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180 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

2 OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND EXPENSES 2.

(CONT'D)

()

Total employee benefits (f)
including Directors’
remuneration

Wages and salaries

Defined contribution
superannuation expense

Other employee benefits

Wages and salaries included in:

Cost of sales
Management and
administration expenses

3. INCOME TAX

(a)

(b)

Income Tax Expense (a)

The major components of
income tax expense are:

Current income tax

Current income tax expense

Adjustments in respect of current
income tax of previous year

Deferred income tax

Income tax benefit arising
from previously unrecognised
tax loss

Relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

Income tax expense reported in
the statement of comprehensive
income

Amounts charged or credited (b)
directly to equity

Deferred income tax related
to items charged/(credited)
directly to equity
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3. INCOME TAX (CONT'D) 3. SRR (8
(c)  Numerical reconciliation between aggregate (c) MEEWERETHRNEFMZ
tax expense recognised in the statement MEBEEEETEMEMMREAE
of comprehensive income and tax expense B IE 2 M BB 4 BR
calculated per the statutory income tax rate
A reconciliation between tax expense and the #60 YE BA 52 B B B 15 400 Al & 51 i
product of accounting profit before income tax I g A5 [ 7 TS R R 2
multiplied by the Group’s applicable income tax FRERVHIRAE
rate is as follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$'000
FiRT T-#T
Accounting profit before BRAT1SLAl & 5 )
income tax 10,509 6,311
At the Group's statutory income & A B B A RN A 75 72 FIT 15 452
tax rate of 30% in Australia FZ30%
(2019: 30%) (20194E : 30%) 3,153 1,893
Adjustments in respect of current i 3 4F & B H Fr 154
income tax of previous year 1 H R - -
Effect of different rates of tax on Az AN [F] FE 28 1) 7
overseas income (1,698) (792)
Other HAth (843) (858)
Previously unrecognised tax B HERR 8 I AR HE R
losses utilised/recognised IREY i (1,009) (2,079)
Tax losses and other temporary 7 fif 53 F T 5 48 B L Ath By 15 722
differences not recognised as B (R AT BE 2 A )
benefit not probable 713 1,836
Aggregate income tax expense P15 Bl S 4878 316 -
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3.

INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

(d)

(e)

Recognised deferred tax
assets and liabilities

Consolidated deferred income
tax at reporting date relates
to the following:

Deferred tax assets
(excluding tax losses)

Leave entitlements

Rehabilitation provision

Share issue and listing costs

Mine properties, property,
plant and equipment

Exploration costs

Accruals

Temporary differences not
recognised

Set off deferred tax liabilities
pursuant to set off provisions

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Mine properties, property,
plant and equipment

Set off deferred tax liabilities
pursuant to set off provisions

Deferred income tax liabilities

Tax Losses

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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(e) TRIEKIE

The Group has tax losses of approximately
AU$16.9 million in Australia (2019: AU$11.1
million) and approximately AU$26.8 million
in Sweden (2019: AU$26.0 million) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the jurisdictions in which the
losses arose. The Australian tax consolidated
group has available capital losses amounting
to AU$2.6 million (2019: AU$2.6 million). The
Group fully utilised its tax losses in Finland
during the year (2019: AU$4.5 million tax losses

were carried forward).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

3.

INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

(e)

Tax Losses (Cont’d)

The benefits of the tax losses will only be
obtained by the companies in the Consolidated
Entity if:

] they continue to comply with the
provisions of the Income Tax Legislation
relating to the deduction of losses of prior
periods;

. they earn sufficient assessable income to
enable the benefits of the deductions to be
realised; and

. there are no changes in Income Tax
Legislation adversely affecting the
Company’s ability to realise the benefits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they may not be
used to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the
Group, they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time, and there are
no other tax planning opportunities or other
evidence of recoverability in the near future.

Tax consolidation

Effective 1 July 2003, for the purpose of income
taxation, Dragon Mining Limited and its 100%
Australian owned subsidiaries formed a Tax
Consolidation Group (“Tax Group”). Members
of the Tax Group have entered into a tax sharing
and funding arrangement whereby each entity in
the Tax Group has agreed to pay a tax equivalent
amount to or from the head entity, based on the
current tax liability or current tax asset of the
entity. Such amounts are reflected in amounts
receivable from or payable to other entities in
the Tax Group. For the year ended 31 December
2020, there are no tax consolidation adjustments
(2019: Nil). The nature of the tax funding
arrangement for the Tax Group is such that no
tax consolidation adjustments (contributions by
or distributions to equity participants) would
be expected to arise. The head entity of the Tax
Group is Dragon Mining Limited. In addition,
the agreement provides for the allocation of
income tax liabilities between the entities
should the head entity default on its tax payment
obligations. At balance date, the possibility of
default is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

4.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand

(a)

(b)

Reconciliation of net profit
after tax to net cash flows
from operations

Net profit/(loss) after tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Exploration write-off

Capitalised interest on
qualifying assets

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Changes in operating assets
and liabilities
Increase in receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
(Decrease)/increase in trade
creditors
Increase in provisions

Net operating cash flows

Reconciliation of liabilities
from financing activities

Opening balance — 1 January
Cash flow:

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

Non-cash changes:

Additions to lease liabilities

Foreign exchange adjustments on
borrowings and lease liabilities

Balance at period end

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE %

b

R 2~ #A

AR e B IRE (D)

4. BRERBFETEFEY

IRAT & T IR
(@ KRREFEINEECEE

(b)

ENFEREREHKR

PR A, (85 18)

B IR A (E A% -

7 88 B 1 5H

BEMEENEAL
A&

SMERSHR (WX ak) AR

BHEEERAEIEE)

BB R
SAEE ) /B
f D/ ()
HE 553 B 2

G /e
B

REB SR EEFHE

MEEZHEEHIR

A& ER—1HTH
HEiE
ERGIECE/e
ERBIE
HEHEEE

B E)

REMEAE

fE e HE B E
41 HE i R

HAR &G R

2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$’000
BT T#IT
14,352 8,182
14,352 8,182
10,193 6,311
8,057 6,849
2,381 -
658
(1,030) (2,902)
(48) 360
909 (6,891)
(1,181) 1,881
835 2,267
20,774 7,621
6,600 4,000
= 2,000
(3,000) =
(101) (30)
461 337
(596) 293
3,364 6,600
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

5.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables — fair value

through profit or loss (i)
Trade receivables — amortised cost (ii)
Other receivables (iii)

(iii)

Trade receivables that relate to concentrate sales
that are subject to quotation period pricing are
recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
Concentrate sales are subject to the provisional
pricing arrangements disclosed in note 1(h). The
Group issues a provisional invoice at the end
of the month following the month of delivery
which is payable within fifteen days. A final
invoice is issued by the Group within three days
of receiving final assays, typically two months
post-delivery, which is payable by the purchaser
within five days of invoice receipt.

Includes trade receivables for gold sold on
market and settled within two days. The
probability of default is considered to be
insignificant. All amounts have been collected
subsequent to year end.

Other receivables include bank guarantees held
on deposit with National Australia Bank for the
lease of the corporate premises. These deposits
are rolled over every three months in accordance
with the lease terms. Due to the short-term
nature and credit rating of the counterparty, the
probability of default is insignificant.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk
are disclosed in note 23(d) and 23(e).

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

HE

#

i3

A

R 2 #A

AR e B HARIRE (D)

5. B

H 7 BWGRIE— R E 2 %
NFEEHE)

B 7 R WSCRK TE — {8 B PR (i)

LA S LACRROE i)

(iii)

B H thE U FhIE
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$'000
FiRT TIT
4,153 3,786
866 495
1,259 1,668
6,278 5,949

SR A - 9 B 30 O HR e 5
H B B B 7 I WORROE 17 A
E AR 2 R0 o S R 9 B A
B 31 (h) BT 45 5 19 B Ik o2 (B 22 HF
FITER o A & M & N 2 3% H &
A JE B R 8 5RO RKOH
BN+ HH AN - AEER
W HY B 44 & B = H P B H R AR
BE RN EMMEAE
77 FETR W B 3% 2R L H A RR o

B T 5 B R R W
H W& B8 E 5 WGRIE - &
M BEE R S AE KT A
IE A JEE BB 12 WY

A L R TR B AE W AR A
Yy 3 R A 6 77 U National
Australia BankSR1TIE LR o 5% 55
GFHRRBHERRE =A%
F—RoHNHEEHAEERK
SEFHNEETH LA
AEMENG AN K o

AR 15 T B 05 B T B e ) 6 Je B
M523 (d) Fe23(e) i 75 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 5. EBSKREMEWKIRIE ()

Ageing Analysis

An aged analysis of the trade debtors as at the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

Amounts not yet due
Within 1T month

1 to 2 months

2 to 3 months

Over 3 months

Trade receivables

INVENTORIES

Ore and concentrate stockpiles — at cost
Gold in circuit valued — at cost
Raw materials and stores — at cost

OTHER ASSETS

Current
Prepayments

Non-current
Environmental and other bonds
at amortised cost

The environmental bonds relate to cash that has been
deposited with Swedish and Finnish government
authorities. The bonds are held in an interest-
bearing account and can only be drawn down when
rehabilitation programs have been completed and
authorised by the relevant government authority. The

AR O 1R

AR e B IRE (D)

TR S AR > 1233 5 0 I EH B IE (S
H 5 R ARER T TR

2020 2019
20205 20194F
AU$’000 AU$’000
Fi#ET FIT
T A 2 B B9 <2 2 4,153 2,899
—M@AN 856 1,382
— 2 E H 7 =
ME=1EH = =
Bim=1"A 3 -
& 5 e WG IE 5,019 4,281
6 ﬁ‘c
2020 2019
20205 20194F
AU$’000 AU$’000
F#ET FIT
Tl e i e JEE 17— AR 7,261 9,875
A E SR 8,003 5,896
JE A AL e {3 B — 42 R A 850 913
16,114 16,684
7. HthEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$’000
FHET FHIT
i
TR #TH 209 163
JETRED
T AR BB IV BR 1R A
HMEZ%H 5,544 5,289

Consolidated Entity’s exposure to credit risk and interest
rate risk is disclosed in note 23(d) and 23(e).

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE

#

w A R A A

R E %5 B O A A7 U B L e 25 B X
IR R B <2 A R o [E 27 ) DUGEH B BR
FPRA EEEBEHEHTHRITESS
B RS IR RERE T A IR B o 42 B E
H8 T B ) 45 6 Jem B R o) = JL B R B =
23(d) Fe23(e)fi 75 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8.
Land Tith
Gross carrying amount — at cost 2 RS FHE A BR T ARE
Buildings 1B¥F
Gross carrying amount — at cost 2 AR FHE AT BR H A8
Less accumulated depreciation R FHT B K IE
and impairment
Net carrying amount AR HI 3
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE
Gross carrying amount — at cost 2 A FHE A AR T A8
Less accumulated depreciation and TR EHT & K IE
impairment
Net carrying amount A I 7 E
Mine Properties 3k S
Gross carrying amount — at cost 2 AR EHE AT BR T 4 E
Less accumulated amortisation I8 2 w1 B R
and impairment
Net carrying amount AR I 3
Total property, plant and equipment Y% R E Rk R H4E%E
Gross carrying amount — at cost AR FHE AT BR E A8
Less accumulated amortisation and I 2R A 8 B R ME
impairment
Net carrying amount AR FHE

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

HE

#

" A R A A

AR e B HARIRE (D)

¥ B ERRE

2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$'000
FiRT TIT
1,377 1,362
2,580 2,548
(2,185) (2,052)
395 496
36,083 34,231
(33,448) (31,862)
2,635 2,369
136,247 123,978
(102,120) (94,858)
34,127 29,120
176,287 162,119
(137,753) (128,772)
38,534 33,347
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

The Group has considered whether any impairment
triggers exist at 31 December 2020 and have
concluded that no triggers are present in the current
year. Management have also considered whether an
impairment reversal is required and determined that
no historical impairment should be reversed. No
impairment was recognised during the 2019 and 2020
financial years. Included within Mine Properties is
AU$8.4 million (31 December 2019: AU$16.3 million)
relating to Faboliden. During the year, the Company
completed test mining at Faboliden, all capitalised costs
for Orivesi have been fully written off. The Company has
continued to advance the approval of its environmental
permit application (“Application”), a process which,
prior to COVID-19, was anticipated to be completed by
early 2021. During the year, the Company has provided
supplementary investigations and responses to various
statements and opinions received by the Swedish
Land and Environmental Court (the “Court”). While
the Application process was initially expected to have
concluded by early 2021, the Company now anticipates
the soonest date for its Application to be heard by the
Court is Autumn 2021 (Northern Hemisphere) and the
commencement of full-scale mining is in 2022.

Reconciliations:
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the
reporting period:

Land T3
Carrying amount at beginning of period HA /] iR [Hi{H

Net foreign exchange movement 471 REE 42 B 0
Carrying amount at end of period IR B9 AR I (H
Buildings 1BF

Carrying amount at beginning of period HA#/] ik [ {E

Additions nE
Depreciation rEs
Disposals HE
Net foreign exchange movement 41 HE 52 ) 15 B
Carrying amount at end of period IR B BREI(E

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE

#

w A R A A

AR e B IRE (D)

8.

ME BB Keskfi (48)

AEFECZER2020E12H31HEZ
517 16 AL {n] i 5% Dl (B P S5 48> 6
AN AR B I S TR AR R U I SR o
HEINE S w R R E I
P I e A U E B BB A 0 2019 K
202084 BUAF: 3l A i 5B JUE © 51 A BE
L EER8.45 BT (20194E12H31
H :16.3F & T) BFiabolidenB B o
FN o AN A SR Faboliden Yy 1 3
% Orivesif T A & AL A B B E
B o AN T A A B HIR R Ol 55
s (THE)) i - RCOVID-19
Z AT THHIE R2021 W) 52 5 o FE N »
AN T O R B 1 o BB 85 vk e (M7
BE 1) W I By 25 B 2t B = AR R 72
FAEROE - HE HFERFY LD TEY
2021 FE R SERK > AR N B B FE L
B B L 202 1R RN (AL 2FBR) B2 5R
H A i & B 2022 4F Bl 44 % B

e

HiR
I 5 B By IR W 3K ~ RS B AR
T {EL ) 3 B

2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$’000
F#ET T
1,362 1,390
15 (28)
1,377 1,362
496 642

7 _

(110) (113)

- (24)

2 9)

395 496
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

AR e B HARIRE (D)

8. WE -BmEKR=MHE (&

2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$’000
Fi8T THIT

Property, plant and equipment ME--BERRE
Carrying amount at beginning of period FA#/JY iR HI{H 2,369 2,026
Additions nE 1,391 1,605
Reclassification of right-of-use assets BT ) $H i A & (64) =
Depreciation e 1,111) (1,102)
Net foreign exchange movement 41 528 51y 73 2 50 (160)
Carrying amount at end of period HIR B AR EI(E 2,635 2,369

Mine properties 3 EYES

Carrying amount at beginning of period A4/ B [ 29,120 22,455
Additions wE 1,060 9,100
Capitalisation of borrowing costs RN =N | - 146
Reclassification of evaluation costs A H B AR E T 8 11,037 3,136
Depreciation e (6,733) (5,609)
Net foreign exchange movement 471 FEE 42 ) {2 (357) (108)
Carrying amount at end of period HIR B BREI{E 34,127 29,120

9. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION COSTS

9. BERRKFHEM A

2020 2019

20205 20194

AU$’000 AU$'000

FiRT T#T

Balance at beginning of financial period [ BUHA 9] 1 48 84 8,699 5,333

Additions nE 8,713 6,808

Exploration write-off B3 6] (2,381) =

Reclassification to mine properties H o BEEHYE (11,037) (3,136)

Net foreign exchange movement 471 REE 42 ) 7 (5) (306)
Total mineral exploration and T 7E B 1 e A1t B S 4B RH

evaluation expenditure 3,989 8,699

The recoverability of the carrying amount of exploration
and evaluation is dependent on the successful
development and commercial exploitation, or
alternatively through the sale of the respective area of
interest.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A R S A

b % B At ) B T L RE 5 LA [ B IR
AE A5 P A 2 % o B ER > 5 AT
B H B s A ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

10.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Gross carrying amount — at cost
Less accumulated depreciation

and impairment
Net carrying amount

Reconciliations

10.

AR T ABE — % A
R A FHIT 88 K B E

AR T E

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of right-of use
asset classes at the beginning and end of the reporting

period:

Right-of-use assets — property
Carrying amount at beginning of period

Additions
Depreciation

Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of period

Right-of-use assets —
plant and equipment

Carrying amount at beginning of period

Additions
Depreciation

Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of period

EREEE—ME
SR AR T E
NE

e

471 52 By 7 2

AR B R T E

ERAEEE—
PR 5 e 5% 1

HA) O R T {E

NE

e

41 e 5 B 7 R

HAPR B R T (E

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented in note 13.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE

#

w A R A A

AR e B IRE (D)

FREESE
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$’000
FHET THIT
504 344
(127) (24)
377 320
HER
R HAA) R A R {6 A R E S B IR 1T
{EAIEER
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$'000
Fi#ET FIEIT
202 -
81 205
(62) (3)
1 _
222 202
118 43
74 97
@1) 21)
4 (1)
155 118

AEENHEE A ERNEF1325]-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) &S IASHRERMEE (48)

11.

12.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables and accruals

Ageing Analysis

An aged analysis of the trade creditors and accruals as at
the end of the reporting period, based on invoice date,

is as follows:

Within 1 month
1 to 2 months
2 to 3 months
Over 3 months

Trade payables and accruals

PROVISIONS

Current

Employee entitlements
Rehabilitation

Other

Non-current
Employee entitlements
Rehabilitation

Rehabilitation movement

Balance at 1 January

Additions

Rehabilitation borrowing
discount unwound

Net foreign exchange movement

Balance at 31 December

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

HE

#

" A R A A

1. BEREMEARIEA

2020 2019
20204 20194

AU$’000 AU$'000

FiRT FHIT

5 WAt #O0E Fe s E 6,548 7,049

AR O MR
TR & IR - 123 55 H HIEH B RV IE AT
B2 IRAO E R 8 A RO ARES AT 40T

2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$’000
F#ET T
—fE AN 6,544 6,959
—Z2WEA 1 33
WZE =18 H 3 25
=18 H = 32
5 AT FOAE R ER & 6,548 7,049
12. #fE
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$’000
FRT Fi#IT
REh
& E Mt 1,839 2,263
1828 313 -
HAh 199 -
2,351 2,263
JETRED
& EwEns 149 122
1828 18,876 18,992
19,025 19,114
18R Z8)
R1HTH &R 18,992 12,531
e 26 6,768
A [ W 16 2R SR A 3R
A BEE 52 ) 1 AR 171 (307)
12 431 H B4R 19,189 18,992
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

PROVISIONS (CONT’D)

The provisions for rehabilitation are recorded in relation
to the gold mining operations for the rehabilitation
of the disturbed mining area to a state acceptable
to various Swedish and Finnish authorities. While
rehabilitation is performed progressively where possible,
final rehabilitation of the disturbed mining area is not
expected until the cessation of production. Accordingly,
the provisions are expected to be settled primarily at
the end of the mine life, although some amounts will
be settled during the mine life. Rehabilitation provisions
are estimated based on survey data, external contracted
rates and the timing of the current mining schedule.
Provisions are discounted based on rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to that liability. The discount rate
utilised for Finland in 2020 was 0% (2019: 0%) and
in Sweden was 0% (2019: 0%). Additions during the
relevant periods to the rehabilitation provision include
obligations that do not have an associated mining asset
recognised at the end of the reporting date.

As at the date of this report, there have been no
changes to the acid forming characteristics of the non-
acid forming waste rock area included in the Group’s
Svartliden Closure Plan. On 18 November 2019, the
Company submitted its appeal to the Environmental
Court of Appeal challenging, amongst other things,
the additional security required by the Land and
Environmental Court for an engineered cover to the
entire waste rock area. The Company is awaiting
notification of a hearing date from the Land and
Environmental Court of Appeal. A contingent liability in
relation to the Groups Svartliden rehabilitation provision
has been disclosed at note 21.

The Group continues to complete progressive
rehabilitation at all its sites. Rehabilitation expected to
be undertaken in the subsequent reporting period has
been recognised as a current liability.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

" AR & A

AR e B IRE (D)

#H @

BERBHEI SRR EB ML
57 18 BA B & SR 18 2 B B S R B 2
A% A A] B2 2 AR B o BB AE RI BERY
B NS ETESR HHEEEE
ZHIAGHZENREEBCETR
KR WL HEERBEEITES
ERE L EmaS /A~ Mo S/
G TR Ll 2=y B A A T o 1B 2R B
TIRBEREEE IS ENERE
i HR 5 A 3 0 W R AT A 5t o SR )Y
L B B A S T R B (P T 35
157 1Y) B 2R w2 T B B R Y L B AT
AR 0 20204 %5 f P A I AS B R &0%
(20194F : 0%) * Hfi 1 0% (20194F :
0%) - tHEA I N ERBBHENLREC
FE AR 5 1A 2R P e 2 Sl S A B R R
EREE-

AARHRE HEH > REEPSvartliden®t
W st &I P A A1 JE B 1 B A & 1 g
TE B HRE 20M 48 A (] 52 )y © R20194F 11
H18H » RN A M IERE LFFREGLE H
bF o B (AR i KRR
e B2 SR il 2L o = B I Y S B
TR LA MK o RN A IEERF T K
BIE LaREE 2 IR s H HZE A - B Bl
AEESvartlidenf8 B H IR B E
BB EE2 145 55 o

7 B 18 4 A A P A R A R IR 1B
3 o TR N KRS HETHESE
EER Ay B B fE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) &S IASHRERMEE (48)

13.

INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES 13. =tE&E
2020 2019
20204 20194F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET T#IT
Current REh
Lease liabilities HEAE 147 65
Non-current JETREY
Loan principal BRAE 3,000 6,000
Revaluation of Hong Kong B TAIME R I E
Dollar denominated drawdowns = 293
Lease liabilities HEAE 217 242
3,217 6,535
The Group's right-of-use lease assets are presented at A6 1 B REAH & & A EUR B R
note 10. 10°
Interest Rate Maturity HK$’'000 AU$'000
As at 31 December 2020: 2020128318 : FIES ZIEH FHET TR
AP Finance Limited AP Finance Limited
Australian Dollar RITHIE TR 4% 30 Jun 2022 = 3,000
denominated drawdowns 20224
6H30H

As at 31 December 2019:

AP Finance Limited

Interest Rate Maturity HK$'000 AU$000
420194 12H31H : GIES EEGS) FAET FEAT

AP Finance Limited

Australian Dollar BITHME I 4% 30 Jun 2021 - 3,000
denominated drawdowns 20214
6H30H
Hong Kong Dollar T YI{E IR 4% 30 Jun 2021 17,961 3,293
denominated drawdowns 20214
6H30H
The Group has an unsecured Loan Facility with AP AREMEA K HEAP Finance Limited®JT
Finance Limited (“Loan Facility”) for the Australian (TIT) FE(EH12.05 & E T iy # K
Dollars (“AUD”) equivalent of AU$12.0 million. The HWEHME ((EHREE) - AEHA
Group has AU$9.0 million in undrawn Loan Facility 9.0H & HITH RIZEA] H E R E &
funds available. Eo
On 19 November 2020, the Company extended the R2020FE11 H19H » A/ Al A 15
Loan Facility availability period from 31 December B MERN R E2021F12A31HIE
2021 to 30 June 2022; all other terms and conditions RZE2022F6H30H ; FiA H MR K
remained unchanged. RAFMERF AN o
Refer to Subsequent Events note 24(i) for changes to the AHRFEREERMENEE FH2H
Loan Facility after year end. HARFIHIEE24() °

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

HE

#

" A R A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

AR e B IRE (D)

14. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY 14. BHEA

2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20205 20194
Number of Shares AU$’000 AU$'000
Share capital fg s izt & B FRT THRT
Ordinary shares fully paid ~ EL4 & % @ 138,840,613 138,840,613 133,991 133,991

Movements in issued capital BEITRAEF
AU$’000  No. of Shares
FRT K& 8
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 H1H 133,991 138,840,613
Balance at 31 December 2020 2020512 H31 H VAR 133,991 138,840,613

During the year, there were no disclosable transactions
relating to the purchases, sales or redemption of own
shares by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of its
listed securities.

No dividend for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 was declared or paid by the Company. In
addition, the Board resolved not to propose any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Refer to Subsequent Events note 24(ii) for changes in
share capital after year end.

15. RESERVES 15.

Foreign currency translation reserve N e 50 (6 45

Convertible note premium reserve A AR (R

Equity reserve purchase of A i E IR R T
non-controlling interest T 2 {5 1A

Foreign currency translation reserve summary

This reserve is used to record exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries.

Convertible note premium reserve summary

This reserve is used to record the equity component
of any convertible notes on issue. This is a historical
reserve and no convertible notes are currently on issue.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A RS A

RERN BHIRETARA LR SCHE
A B B8 2 ) B B tH S B ) B B AR
el EWEFH AT INE LS

AN B R 220204 5.20194E12
H31HIEFEE TIRSCE AR © b4k
EHGIBRAEBMEE2020F12H
31H IEF B E IREA RS o

FRERBRANZEE F2REHRZ
FIEMEE24(Gi)

B
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$'000
Fi#ET T
(3,633) (3,554)
2,068 2,068
1,069 1,069
(496) (417)
ShEERGHEENE
% VE 56 1 FH S R B X S AN B A
B A 7 R 3R 1 2 A ) BEE £ 722 RE o

AEREREERENE

% T faf 1A 1S A0 85 32 4T 1E SN B (2 AT m]
950 T R ) P 2 ER 0 o X TR M A IR
S faf 4 > H AT SIS 26 4T 7E S B9 AT i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

15. RESERVES (CONT'D)

Equity reserve — purchase of non-controlling interest
This reserve is used to record differences between the
consideration paid for acquiring the remaining non-
controlling interest and the carrying value of net assets
attributed to the non-controlling interest. This is a
historical reserve and all subsidiaries are now wholly

owned.

AR e B HARIRE (D)

15.  f#fE (&)

EaHE - BEIFERER

% TEL faft £ FFY 1S i Sk W0 R e I 42 I
am PIT SR S o R AR ST 22 A 2 Y
{9 5 19 AR T B 2 ] ) 72 B o 5% JELfG
1 7 FEE S (6l > P AT IR B8 8 R BRI
HEEWEA

16. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 16. FEEIEASIE

a)  Details of Key Management Personnel a) E
Directors’ and Executives’ remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about

EEEASHE
*Eﬁ%i:ﬁifﬁﬁﬂ *%ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁﬂ
%383(1)(@)~ (b)~ (c) (O LK
N (T&E@ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬂ) Al
2o WBEEERITHRANESF
WA

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Directors

EE
Mr Arthur G Dew
IR IR

Mr Wong Tai Chun Mark
TR RAE

Mr Brett R Smith
Brett R Smith4t4=

Ms Lam Lai
MELLL

Mr Carlisle C Procter
Carlisle C Procter4c/E

Mr Pak Wai Keung Martin
HE R4

Mr Poon Yan Wai
wCEEE

Executives

THAS

Mr Neale M Edwards
Neale M Edwards4t4=

Mr Daniel K Broughton
Daniel K BroughtonZt4:

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A R S A

Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Board (appointed 7
February 2014)
FPTEEREEGTF (R2014F27HEZR D)

Alternate Director to Mr Arthur G Dew (appointed 19 May 2015)
KESRFE AR BT ESE (R2015F5 H19HEZR )

Executive Director (appointed 7 February 2014)
PUTHEDF (R2014F2H7HEZE)

Non-Executive Director (appointed 18 July 2019)
JEHITEE (R20194E7 H18HEER(T)

Independent Non-Executive Director (appointed 19 May 2015)
W IEHUTE DS (R20154E5 F 19 H 2 1E)

Independent Non-Executive Director (appointed 5 November
2018)
B IFHATE S (R2018F 11 HSHEZE )

Independent Non-Executive Director (appointed 5 November
2018)
B IFHITE S (201811 HSHEZR D)

Chief Geologist (appointed 19 August 1996)
B R (R19964F8 H19H EZE)

Chief Financial Officer (appointed 8 September 2014)
EREMHE (R2014F9H8HEEE)
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196 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  &F&MABERFMIEE (48)

16. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 16. TFEEIEASIKE (B)

(CONT’'D)
b)  Compensation of Key Management Personnel by FEEEASHHM
Key Management Personnel THEHANA
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HILEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$ AU$
HATT T
Short-term A 1,261,264 1,507,621
Long-term A 49,166 61,954
Post-employment BIRE 105,133 134,526
Total HEE 1,415,563 1,704,101
The remuneration of Key Management Personnel FEERANB (T TZTEEHA
(“KMP”) is determined by the Remuneration B BEBN B E N Z B SR
Committee having a regard to the position, BAE N BIBAL ~ &858 BRERR
experience, qualification and performance of the B T S5 8 B4 7 7€ o
individuals and market trends.
Five Highest Paid Employees T 5% 55 #r O 0 B
The five highest paid employees during the R20204F K 20194F » N AL
year included one Director and four specified B e B H s — S EE R
employees, for both 2020 and 2019 years. e E e S
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) &S IASHRERMEE (48) 197

16. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 16. FTEEBIEASIKE (B)

(CONT’D)

b)  Compensation of Key Management Personnel by FEEEBABHM (B
(Cont’d)
Details of the remuneration for the year of the BEIEA 2 7 & H IR IE @ AT B
remaining four highest paid employees who is A B &R T A7 & & # B 0E B
neither a Director nor Chief Executive of the AR B EEE AT

Company are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31ALEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
AU$ AU$
BRI BT
Salaries, allowances and B AR E Y

benefits in kind 991,162 963,862
Performance related bonuses SELEMERATEAL = 26,432
Pension scheme contributions 3B K4 5T #{HLk 173,472 206,687
Total st 1,164,634 1,196,981
The number of Non-Director and Non-Chief AR EE (AT E
Executive highest paid employees whose F) B IFE R R IR S ARATRA B

remuneration fell within the following bands, R HE B NBETNMT

presented in Hong Kong Dollars, is as follows:

As at 31 December

128318
2020 2019
20204 20194
Nil to HK$1,000,000 E 21,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000  1,000,001#7C % 1,500,000 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 282,000,000 7T 4 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T.282,500,000% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000 7T - -
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T.%23,500,000% 7T - -
Total 4mct 4 4
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

16.

AR e B IRE (D)

the Company and his remuneration disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as Chief
Executive Officer.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A RS A

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 16. FTEEBEABEKE (@
(CONT’D)
Directors’ and Executive Officers’ Remuneration ) EERSHRITHASEHMN
Post-
Short-Term Other Long-Term Benefits Employment
it EftRERR Bk
Proportion of
Annual  Long Service Super- Remuneration
Salary Leave leave  annuation Total  Performance
& Fees Bonuses Accrued Accrued Benefits  Emoluments Related
] fEst R Big RERH
HERNE L BHER  RERS BH EMAE  FHLE

In dollars AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD %

Vb Lo " Bt # # i %

Directors 5%

Mr Arthur G Dew KRS CRTESE R 20206 90,000 = = = 8,550 98,550 =
(Non-Executive Director and EHETR) 20196 90,000 = = = 8,550 98,550 =
Chairman of the Board)

Mr Brett R Smith Brett R Smith’EA4: 20004 343,715 200,000 5411 11,262 49,467 609,855 33%
(Executive Director) BrES) 20194 345,419 509,195 3,707 10,833 81,188 950,342 54%

Ms Lam Lai 18 Sean 20204 71,589 = = = = 71,589 =
(Non-Executive Director) (GEsfTES) 20196 31,547 = = = = 31,547 =

Mr Carlisle C Proctor Carlisle C Procterf: 4 20204 40,000 - - - 3,800 43,800 -
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (B 3FATEE) 2019 40,000 - - S 3,800 43,800 =

Mr. Poon Yan Wai BCREE 20204 30,000 = = = = 30,000 =
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (B 3FATEE) 2019 30,000 - - - S 30,000 =

Mr, Pak Wai Keung Martin AE®REE 20204 30,000 = = = = 30,000 =
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (B 3FATEE) 2019 30,000 - - - S 30,000 =

Mr Mark Wong TrEkE 20006 - - - - - - -
(Alternate Director) (BEESR) 20196 - - - - - - -

Total all specified Directors FBREESE 20205 605,304 200,000 5,411 11,262 61,817 883,794 24%

2019% 566,966 509,195 3,707 10,833 93538 1,184,239 3%

Specified Executives EETHAR

Mr Neale M Edwards Neale M Edwards 4 20206 214,698 S 19,030 4123 20,396 258,47 =
(Chief Geologist) (BRHEER) 20194 214,698 - 19,030 4,082 2039 258,206 =

Mr Daniel K Broughton Daniel K Broughtonfi# 20206 241,262 - (127) 9,467 22,920 273,522 -
(Chief Financial Officer) (BRHHE) 20196 216,762 = 19214 5,088 20,592 261,656 =

Total all named Executives FESIBTBASE: 20205 455,960 = 18,903 13,590 43316 531,769 =

2019% 431,460 5 38,244 9,170 40,988 519,862 =
Total all specified Directors FBREESK 20206 1,061,264 200,000 2314 24,852 105133 1415563 14%
and Executives IR 20195 998,426 509,195 41,951 20,003 134526 1,704,101 30%
Notes: BRTRE -
1) Mr Arthur Dew received certain emoluments from 1) KER RS AR A F 1
Allied Group Limited in relation to his services to the J8 B & 4R A R F) 4R LR
Allied Group Limited, a substantial shareholder of the 75 i W HI M 5 66 T R B B
Company. T <& o

2) Mr Brett Smith is also the Chief Executive Officer of 2) Brett Smith%t4: 7R & A& /N &) AT

BAEHE > b S P I ER T B B
FLAR 25 AT BUAERAR IR 5 1
HH %7 B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

AR e B HARIRE (D)

16. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 16. FEEEASIKE (&

(CONT’D)

o Directors’ and Executive Officers’ Remuneration ¢ HERSRITHABHMN (B
(Cont’d)
The Executive Director remuneration shown R BATE RS A E
above is for the provision of services in BN RO SE E R R A
connection with the management of the affairs of AR5 Pt WS A1 36
the Company and the Group.
The Non-Executive Director and Independent L RIEHATE F B LR
Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration shown HITHEEFWNAIERANFE
above are for their services as Directors of the AR AR R 75 I W A 3 o
Company.
There was no arrangement under which o HA 9 R A B E B R A
a Director waived or agreed to waive any 7 725 AT AT T < P 22 B o
emoluments during the reporting period.
No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM BN R E R LS AT
has a service contract with the Company which ) B 25 Al 2 B A % ) BT AL R AT
is not determinable by the Company within one HALN TR —ERN RN BEE (X
year without payment of compensation, other TE B EBRAN) T AL B IRE &
than normal statutory compensation. #yo

17.  REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS 17, ZEREDER A

The Auditor of Dragon is Ernst & Young,

Recognised Public Interest Entity Auditor:

FiE & TR B 1% BRI 7 22 K & & TS S

i

RO A 2N AR 2 A A BT

Remuneration of Ernst & Young
(Australia) for:
— auditing or reviewing accounts
— tax consulting

Remuneration of Ernst & Young
(other than Australia) for:
— auditing or reviewing accounts

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A R S A

2020 2019
20205 20194
AU$ AU$
BT T
K& AN AT DL R IRES
BT A G
—EETEERIEEE 158,500 163,193
— MR T5E 33,000 44,869
191,500 208,062
K@ BHET S5 At DL R AR TS
36T B G IN DL M )
—FET I ERRE 84,697 93,432
84,697 93,432
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by
dividing net profit or loss for the period attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period
(adjusted for the effects of dilutive options and dilutive
convertible notes). There have been no post balance
sheet movements impacting the diluted earnings per
share.

The following reflects the income and share data used in
the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

AR e B IRE (D)

BRREF

5 R R A g M < B T DAURE 08 ) A R
R A A 5 P T M) B8 85 48 73 BE PR DA
M B AT 5 A R Y 0 R - 1 B

Ho

Ean

5 R 8 9 2 F) <B RT DURE Y A A
R A AL T ) 5585 15 73 28 bR DU A
CL 384T 2 AR O I RE 1~ 25 B (it L
00 P S e R % ] R SR AR Y B A
R 5t 7 - RS ETRE
HMEANNEEAERREE-

DU S R &t 55 67 i B A e 839 2 M T
PR BRI Wi 2k e A 1) B

Basic earnings per share

Profit used in calculation of basic
earnings per share (AU$'000)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period
used in the calculation of basic
earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (cents)

Diluted earnings per share

Profit used in calculation of basic
earnings per share (AU$'000)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period
used in the calculation of basic
earnings per share

Number of potential ordinary shares
that are not dilutive and hence not
included in calculation of diluted
earnings per share. These may be
dilutive in future if exercised

Diluted earnings per share (cents)

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

" AR & A

SRELEF

PRt 35 B 2 A g1 ) 9 7 A
(T-#7¢)

TR EH B SRR A A A
C#TE AR
I 9 81

AR (5)

SRBERT

FITR &t B AR A A 2 A Tt A
(T-#7¢)

MR B R A M E A
E#T @AY
INHE~F- 19 81

ANEEEBUE K H IR E R &
Pl 148 e A B Sl R B0 55 O 7
EEEREHE - HRWEST
{5 5 AT mE L 9 S

R A ()

2020
20204

2019
20194

10,193

138,840,613

6,311

138,840,613

7.34

10,193

138,840,613

4.55

6,311

138,840,613

7.34

4.55
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

19.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a)

Subsidiaries

The Consolidated Financial Statements include
the financial statements of Dragon Mining
Limited and the subsidiaries listed in the

following table:

Name of Entity
HRERHE

Dragon Mining

Investments Pty Ltd
Dragon Mining Investments

Pty Ltd

Dragon Mining (Sweden) AB
Dragon Mining (Sweden) AB

Viking Gold & Prospecting AB
Viking Gold & Prospecting AB

Dragon Mining Oy
Dragon Mining Oy

FEETRA R AR

(Dragon Mining Limited) '

FEETRA R A A

1

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

HE

#

i3

A

R 2 #A

For translation purposes

Incorporation

=E 1 A% 3L 3t RE

Australia
TN
Sweden
Tify 4L

Sweden
Hify 4L

Finland
e ke

|
Hong Kong
&

AR e B HARIRE (D) 201

19. BEALRS

a) MEBRFE
MaMBRREUEEERAR
AIV-EESETN ) - PG )

PR
Class Equity Holding
bl RIEFEE
2020 2019
% %o
20204 20194
% %o
Ordinary 100 100
K
Ordinary 100 100
gl
Ordinary 100 100
B
Ordinary 100 100
=il
Ordinary 100 100
gl
! B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

19.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

b)

Transactions with related parties

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company
has the following transactions with related parties
that are also exempted from the continuing
connected transactions disclosures according
to Rule 14A.73(6) and 14A.73(8) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(i) The Company has effected Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance.

(i)  In addition to his role as the Company’s
Chief Financial Officer, Mr DK Broughton
is the Chief Financial Officer of ASX
listed gold explorer Tanami Gold NL
(“Tanami”) and provides Chief Financial
Officer Services (“CFO Services”) to ASX
listed base metals mining and exploration
company, Metals X Limited (“Metals X”).
The Company provides administrative
services to Tanami and Metals X including
offering the use of certain space in the
Company office premise located in Perth,
Australia as its registered office to Tanami.
Tanami is a company of which Messer’s
Dew, Smith and Procter, the Company’s
Non-Executive Director and Chairman,
Executive Director and Independent Non-
Executive Director, respectively, are also
Non-Executive Directors. The provision of
services commenced from 8 September
2014.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE

#

b

A

R 2~ #A

AR e B IRE (D)

19.

RAZEA

b)

X% (@)

HERAEALTHNRSR

R A & & W 75 R 3% B 5 L A o
F7ET B AN RN A A DL
IR *"ﬁazﬁﬁ BHERZS
Fr A BR A Al 58 % b AR A 28
14A 73(6) % 14A.73(8) G IE 43
4 B AT 5 0 B R E W B B
/\%o

i) AAFCEEEFEKS
MANBRI R LR

(i) BRT\ETAANE H KM
¥ E 4N DK Broughton
el AN BEMEFR
S LW E S 5%
A& Tanami Gold NL
(M TanamiJ) B9 & J& B
BE AR IENEH
ZH T BTN 5B
BHAR B B % 28 FlMetals X
Limited ("Metals X J) 2t
HEMBEERE (T8 E
W B RS )) o RNF]M
TanamikMetals X{ZALFT
AR > B iG M Tanamitg
BEAS N T AR TN 30
P ANZEMHENE T
RE 2 H et MR g o A
NAIEHATEHFEF
IKEE RS S AR A B AT
HHSmithse 4 K AN H
¥ 37 JE AT = FHProcter
SeE TR E R A Tanamily
FEHITEF ARG E
201449 F 8H B dRTE ko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

19.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

b)

Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)
During the year, the Company charged Tanami
AU$100,000 (2019: AU$100,000) for CFO
Services of which nil was outstanding at 31
December 2020 (2019: nil). On 10 July 2020,
Mr Smith was appointed Executive Director of
Metals X (previously Non-Executive Director).
The provision of services commenced from 1
December 2020. During the year, the Company
charged Metals X AU$10,000 for CFO Services
of which AU$8,333 was outstanding at 31
December 2020.

Entity with significant influence over the
Group

As at 31 December 2020, the following entities
have significant influence over the Group:

(i) Allied Properties Resources Limited
(“APRL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL")
(@ company formerly listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
a wholly owned subsidiary of Allied
Group Limited), owns 31,881,727
(2019: 25,487,855) ordinary shares of
the Company for an interest of 22.96%
(2019: 18.35%). The Company also has
an unsecured AU$12 million loan facility
with AP Finance Limited (“Loan Facility”),
a subsidiary of APL. The key provisions
of the Loan Facility include (i) an interest
rate of 4.0% per annum payable in arrears,
and (ii) a loan with the term up to 30 June
2022. Refer to note 13 Interest Bearing
Liabilities for further information.

(ii) Sincere View International Ltd. owns
40,475,899 (2019: 27,500,899) ordinary
shares of the Company for an interest of
29.15% (2019: 19.81%).

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

HE

#

i3

A

R 2 #A

AR e B HARIRE (D)

19.

iped

b)

AR5 (@)

HEAEATHR S (B)

ER RANBHEE VT ER
A Tanamilfit BX100,00078 7T
(20194 : 100,000/ 7T) » H
R2020F12H31THI AR E
A% (20194 &) 222020
F7HI10H > Smithde R A
Metals XZ#UfTE 5 (JH A IEHN
fTHEE) c H2020F12H1HE
BHUG R L AR TS « 42 N > AR A El wt
B E U B E RS MIMetals XYEL
10,000/ 77 » E 8,333 ITHR
2020412 H31 H # AR YL ©

B K5 [ 7 HE A B B

202012 A431TH LU N E B
BAREEAENTE

(i) HaktE (%) BIR
NE (THEHE)  —
B R R
Fr AR AR EHRHA
HoliAHSEERAER
NEWEEWBEAA)
HWEEWB A A Allied
Properties Resources
Limited (T APRL 1) %A A&
/NF]31,881,727R% (2019
4 © 25,487,8550%) i@
A% (B122.96% (20194F :
18.35%) FE25) o AN H
TR BB 5 M7 1 B B A
HJAP Finance Limitedg]
BH12H &8 ey
BREE (EREIE ) o
EREE N EERRE
RO EF Z4 0HF &
AR A BRI E R 2 HA
RESZ A 5 (i E AR =
20226 H30H & 1A
BE—SER B2
F13EtEAE-

(ii) Sincere View International
Ltd A AN F] 40,475,899
A% (20194F : 27,500,899
%) 3 3 A% (R129.15%M25)
(20194F : 19.81%H%5) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

20.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identified its operating segments based
on the internal reports that are used by the chief
operating decision makers in assessing performance and
determining the allocation of resources.

The Group has identified its operating segments to be
Sweden and Finland, based on geographical location,
different national regulatory environments, and different
end products. Dragon Mining (Sweden) AB, the primary
entity operating in Sweden, produces gold bullion
from the Svartliden Production Centre and processed
ore from test-mining activities at the Fdboliden Gold
Mine. Dragon Mining Oy in Finland produces gold
concentrate from the Vammala Production Centre and,
processed ore from the Jokisivu, Kaapelinkulma and
Orivesi Gold Mines.

Discrete financial information about each of these
operating segments is reported to the Board and
executive management team (the chief operating
decision makers) on at least a monthly basis.

Accounting policies and inter-segment transactions
The accounting policies used by the Group in reporting
segments internally are the same as those contained in
note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Segment results include management fees and interest
charged on intercompany loans, both of which are
eliminated in the Group result. They also include
foreign exchange movements on intercompany loans
denominated in AUD, and external finance costs that
relate directly to segment operations. This segment
results also include intercompany sales of concentrate
which occur at rates that reflect market value.

Unallocated corporate costs are non-segmental
expenses such as head office expenses and finance costs
that do not relate directly to segment operations.

Disaggregation of revenue and major customers
External sales in Finland relate to concentrate from the
Vammala Production Centre in Finland. These sales
are all made under an ongoing arrangement to one
customer and the quantity of concentrate sales is agreed
by the parties in advance of delivery.

Inter-segment sales in Finland relate to concentrate
on-sold to the Svartliden Processing Centre for further
processing.

External sales in Sweden relate to gold bullion sold on-
market through National Australia Bank.

The Group’s segments reflect the disaggregation of
revenue by geography and product types as described
above.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE

#

w A R A A

AR e B IRE (D)

20.

SEE R

QE: =P g1k 1bs)

A B2 [ 9 B R B o HAR R 0 B
Mz ENRRE R ERERKRE
VER] > SPAZ RO PR AE & R 57 A

AREBMRBHIECE RAARREE
IR B RO [ B i 4% 7 i 0 IR AE8 00
| 73 % i B J 25 B o 78 B BRBH R 22
) F FEE HDragon Mining (Sweden)
ABHISvartliden4: & 7100 4 7 & 88 &
T2 BFiboliden<e M HY & R T1E
M £ o 25 MY Dragon Mining OyHll
M VammalaE 7 il A 7E & G i 0 I
hn LA HJokisivu ~ Kaapelinkulmak
Orivesi<& ik A4 ©

AEEE DG EEGRATER
MIRX (L2 2E LR E) WA B & E
REE 7 BRI L B E R o

B ERRKEDEEARXS
A 85 [ 15 3 5 20 B P ESER B & B X
o B S M B IR I A B[R]

pasiE RS- P E SUT VAT
BRI E > MG EREEEE T
WA © 7 B K A& N B S DUR ST RHE
. 1B P 2 ) P SRR 47 e S By > 1
Jre L 42 B2 3 10 5 765 ML B S 51 B4 75
S B S VINOERE Sl oA
%&%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%

RoBLH AT EHHIETEE M
/N 2 B2 3 0 S 765 A B O R B e
MBS A

WaEkEEXRDHE

£ 25 B B S0 B 8 65 B 23 i VammalaZk
EFDEEREREA R - % FHEY
R —H R T2 PEA — 2 &P 1
o KRS & M E NN E AT BRI 47y

b

EFENTHEEEREY EF
Svartlidenfill T HCME #E — 25 0 T A9
WEAE R -

1E 3t B 1 A 56 9% & B %8 N ational
Australia BankfETi5 LB SEE A
BE o

Y0 b ST At 0 A 5 A o3 F8 B R H i
o $E 1t B A B R E AR R ) SR

\|

pi
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Segment revenue
Gold sales to external customers
Inter-segment sales
Elimination of
inter-segment revenue

Total revenue

Other revenue
Interest revenue
Sundry revenue

Total other revenue
Unallocated interest expense
Total interest expense

Depreciation and amortisation

Unallocated depreciation and
amortisation

Exploration expenditure
written off

Segment result
Pre-tax segment result
Income tax expense

Post-tax segment result

Unallocated items:

Corporate interest revenue

Corporate costs

Finance costs

Elimination of inter-company
interest, expense and
management fees in segment
results

Profit after tax as per the
Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss

Non-current assets by
geographic location

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

" A R A A

7 B Y i
MR HERS
73 B

1S 73 B e W

W 48 88

Hitlr o
ARt
HEVRN 2%

Hituls 488
AR B S F S
MEREE

I e B o
ROEAE R

BT SCH A

nl‘%%ﬁ
PRELAT 70 FF 4
TS B =<

PRGN EE

RATIER :
AR B
AR

BT A

IR E PRI E E A
\Tﬁﬂu B R
EHE

BRESEERAT
PRIR &R

b3 BESUNE (bl
FERBEE

AR e B HARIRE (D)

20. ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*‘l (nﬁ)

Sweu(!en legrl(_i Unallocated Tot3|
Ing 5H RAE fEEt
2020 2020 2020 2020

20205 20204F 20204F 20204

AU$Z00_0 AU$Z00_0 AU$'000 AU$'000
FET FET FRET FRET
48,368 20,887 - 69,255

- 39,254 - 39,254
- - (39,254) (39,254)
48,368 60,141 (39,254) 69,255
- 6 - 6

_ 6 = 6

- 12 = 12

- - 116 116

- - 116 116
713 7,298 - 8,011
- - 46 46
- 2,381 - 2,381
713 9,679 46 10,438
(577) 11,363 - 10,786
- (316) - (316)
(577) 11,047 - 10,470
100
(2,149)
(121)

1,893

10,193

Sweden Finland Austya[ia T0t3|
Ingt =Y B st
2020 2020 2020 2020

20205 20206 20204 20206

AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000
FExT FET FExT FET

1,239 24,928 22,277 48,444
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

20.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Segment revenue

Gold sales to external customers

Inter-segment sales
Elimination of

inter-segment revenue

Total revenue

Other revenue
Interest revenue
Sundry revenue

Unallocated interest revenue

Total other revenue

Segment interest expense
Unallocated interest expense

Total interest expense

Depreciation and amortisation
Unallocated depreciation and

amortisation

Segment result
Pre-tax segment result
Income tax expense

Post-tax segment result

Unallocated items:

Corporate interest revenue
Other corporate income

Corporate costs
Finance costs

Elimination of inter-company
interest, expense and
management fees in segment

results

Profit after tax as per the
Consolidated Statement

of Profit or Loss

Non-current assets by
geographic location

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE

#

w A R A A

R85 RIS

6k

Hit s
AL W %
gy
KB B

Hituks 488

7 AR B X
AR5 BB B

FERZEE

AT e B
ROECIE R

ﬁnﬁ¥§ﬂ
ERAT AT 7 BPE A
P56 i =2

BRIE D EBER

ADBIEH
AGIEIIY 6
ENUATILION

mEEaE
ﬁﬂﬁ:ﬁ*‘]

IR BB S
ERBEE

AR e B IRE (D)

m&RFRER

20- ﬁﬁlzg*‘l' (IIE)

Sweden Finlarl(j Unallocated Total
il ST KA gt
2019 2019 2019 2019

20194 20194 20194 20194
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

21.

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(i)

(ii)

(iii

)

Hanhimaa Royalty

The Group has a right to a 2% Net Smelter
Return ("NSR”) on future mineral production
from Agnico Eagle Mines Limited (“Agnico
Eagle”) with respect to the Hanhimaa Gold
Project in northern Finland. Agnico Eagle will
have the right to buy back 1 percentage point of
the 2% NSR at any time for €2.0 million cash.

The Hanhimaa Gold Project is an early stage
exploration project as at 31 December 2020 and
therefore the Company has not recognised any
receivables from this agreement, as the risk of
reversal is considered significant.

Endomines Royalty

The Group has a right to a 1% NSR up to €1.5
million from Endomines Oy with respect to
the Mining Properties in the Hattu Schist Belt
in eastern Finland (“Mining Properties”) as
described in the Purchase Agreement dated 12
October 2006. The NSR is only payable from the
Mining Properties, after the Mineral Resource as
defined at the Pampalo Gold Mine, at the date of
sale has been mined.

Aurion Royalty

The Group has a right to a 3% NSR on future
mineral production from Aurion Resources
Limited with respect to the Kutuvuoma and
Silassekd Gold Projects in northern Finland. The
Group is also entitled to receive a bonus payment
upon the defining of one million ounces of gold
equivalent material categorised as Measured and
Indicated and for every additional one million
ounces of gold equivalent material categorised as
Measured and Indicated.
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONT'D)

(iv)

Svartliden Rehabilitation Provision

In accordance with the Group’s legal
requirements, a provision has been recognised to
provide for the anticipated future rehabilitation
costs at Svartliden. The basis for the provision
amount is derived from the Svartliden
Rehabilitation Plan (“Closure Plan”), which
is reviewed and updated as necessary by an
independent external consultant, in accordance
with the Groups Environmental Permit
provisions.

In April 2017, work to update the Closure Plan
was completed and, together with comments
from the Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA”) and the County Administration Board
(“CAB”), was submitted to the Land and
Environmental Court (“Court”). While the scope
has not been disputed, the suggested value of the
bond is presently under appeal.

The submitted Closure Plan includes segregating
the potentially acid forming waste rock (“PAF”)
from the non-acid forming waste rock (“NAF”)
into separate cells. The cost of providing an
engineered hard covering of the PAF cells is
included in the updated costings provided to the
Court in May 2018.

On 3 September 2019, the Court provided its
ruling on the Closure Plan, whereby the Court:

(@  approved the Company’s investigation
reports supporting the Closure Plan; and

(b)  required the Company to increase its
existing rehabilitation collateral security
to SEK74.0 million. The increase can
take the form of a bank guarantee and is
intended to provide additional security
for an engineered covering of the entire
waste rock area, in the event the entire
waste rock area becomes potentially acid
forming. The Company has appealed this
ruling.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

21.

CONTINGENT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONT'D)

(iv)

Svartliden Rehabilitation Provision (Cont’d)
On 18 November 2019, the Company submitted
its appeal to the Environmental Court of Appeal
(“Court of Appeal”). The Company’s appeal
challenged:

(@) the amount of additional collateral
security being requested by the Court;

(b)  the permit conditions during the closure
phase; and

(c)  the restrictions preventing the CAB from
incrementally returning the Company’s
security bonds as rehabilitation work is
progressed.

On 16 December 2019, the Court of Appeal,
having read the Company’s appeal document
and grounds for appeal, granted the Company
leave to appeal the Court’s rulings. The Company
is not required to adhere to the Court ruling
while the ruling is under appeal.

During the year, the Company received
statements and opinions issued by the CAB,
EPA and the Vapsten Sami village to the
Environmental Court of Appeal. On 22 February
2020, the Company submitted its responses
to these statements. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group has not provided the additional
security required by the Court for an engineered
cover to the entire waste rock area. The current
approved Closure Plan complies with the known
characteristics of the tailings, waste rock and
operations at Svartliden, the value of the bond
proposed by the Company reflects this scope
of work and is supported by calculations using
the rates of local contractors. The Closure
Plan reflects the conditions on the site and
the necessary activities to be undertaken upon
closure based on independent advice of the most
likely outcome. In the event of a fundamental
change to the acid forming characteristics of
the NAF waste rock, the Company may need to
provide for an engineered cover of the entire
waste rock area and the additional provision will
be significant.

The Company is currently awaiting notification
from the Environmental Court of Appeal of a
hearing date.
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONT'D)

(v)

Orivesi Waste Material

During 2018, the Company received notice
regarding the presence of waste material in the
upper levels of the Orivesi Mine. As previously
announced, the Company believes that the
bulk of the waste material stored between the
66m and 85m levels had been deposited before
the Company purchased the asset in 2003
and recommenced mining of ore in 2007. The
Company submitted its explanation and a work
procedure prior to the commencement of waste
material removal in 2019 in which 28,000 kg
of mixed waste and rock from the 66m level
was safely removed. The Company is committed
to the safe removal or containment of any
remaining hazardous material and continues
discussions with relevant parties to ensure this
outcome.

On 6 March 2020, the Company submitted a
risk assessment to the Pirkanmaa Centre for
Economic Development, Transport and the
Environment (“PIR ELY”) based on the results
of the four drill holes and water samples taken
from the stope and other parts of the mine. The
risk assessment confirmed there is no need to
remove the material due to its non-hazardous
environmental impact. Additionally, the risk
assessment confirmed the safe removal of the
material is also not possible. Considering these
factors, the Company applied for a retrospective
Environmental Permit. In July 2020, PIR ELY
imposed a compulsion order that required the
Company to investigate the composition of the
waste to ensure the findings from the initial risk
assessment are representative of the total waste
remaining.

The Company’s research plan was completed
by Envineer Oy on 17 September 2020 and
provided to PIR ELY, who approved the plan
on 6 October 2020. Between 30 November —
1 December 2020, the Company performed
surface soil contamination studies and expects
the results of sampling to be received during
2021. The sample results will be used by
Envineer Oy to prepare a remediation plan for
the areas that need cleaning.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

21.

22.

CONTINGENT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONT'D)

(v)

Orivesi Waste Material (Cont’d)

On 30 September 2020, the Company applied
for a retrospective Environmental Permit for the
66m and 85m levels waste on 30 September
2020 from The Regional State Administration
Agencies (“AVI”). On 10 November 2020, AVI
sent supplementary information requests which
the Company responded to on 29 January 2021.

The Company has provided an amount in its
accounts for future drilling and associated costs
to comply with the compulsion order.

EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

a)

Exploration commitments

Due to the nature of the Consolidated Entity’s
operations in exploring and evaluating areas of
interest, it is very difficult to accurately forecast
the nature or amount of future expenditure,
although it will be necessary to incur expenditure
to retain present interests in mineral tenements.
Expenditure commitments on mineral tenure
for the Consolidated Entity can be reduced
by selective relinquishment of exploration
tenure or by the renegotiation of expenditure
commitments. The approximate minimum level
of exploration requirements to retain current
tenements in good standing is detailed below.

Within one year —&ER
One year or later and

no later than five years
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212 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

22. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

b)

c)

Capital commitments
Commitments relating to the acquisition of
equipment contracted for but not recognised as
liabilities are as follows:

—EN

Within one year

Short-term lease expense commitments
Future operating lease commitments not provided
for in the financial statements are as follows:

—FRN

Within one year

Remuneration commitments

Commitments for the payment of salaries and
other remuneration under long-term employment
contracts in existence at the reporting date but
not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

—FRN

Within one year

Amounts disclosed as remuneration commitments
include commitments arising from the service
contracts of Directors and Executives referred
to in note 16 Directors and Executive Officers
Remuneration that are not recognised as liabilities
and are not included in the Directors’ or
Executives’ remuneration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

Financial risk management policies and
objectives

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk and commodity price risk), credit risk,
liquidity risk, and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks, where considered appropriate, to
minimise potential adverse effects on financial
performance without limiting the Group’s
potential upside.

The Group uses different methods to measure
and manage different types of risks to which
it is exposed. These include monitoring levels
of exposure to foreign currency and gold price
risk and assessments of market forecasts for
foreign exchange and gold prices. Liquidity risk
is measured through the development of rolling
future cash flow forecasts at various gold prices
and foreign exchange rates.

Risk management is carried out by executive
management with guidance from the Audit and
Risk Management Committee under policies
approved by the Board. The Board also provides
regular guidance for overall risk management,
including guidance on specific areas, such as
mitigating commodity price, foreign exchange,
interest rate and credit risks, by using derivative
financial instruments.

The Consolidated Entity also has a risk
management program to manage its financial
exposures that includes, but is not limited to, the
use of derivative products, principally forward
gold sales and foreign currency contracts. The
Company does not enter financial instruments,
including derivative financial instruments, for
trade or speculative purposes.

Primary responsibility for identification and
control of financial risks rests with the Board. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of the risks identified below, including
the setting of limits for trading in economic
derivatives, hedging coverage of foreign currency
and gold, credit allowances, future cash flow
forecast projections and financial instruments if
considered necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

b)

C)

Instruments recognised at amounts other
than fair value

The carrying amount of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the financial
statements at amortised cost represents their
respective net fair values.

Fair values for instruments recognised at
fair value

The fair values of the financial instruments as
well as methods used to estimate the fair market
value are summarised in the table below.
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23.
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8
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RIEFES BN A PEEE
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Rl TR A A P AE DU IRl

HH A 0 7 45 (B (LB 77 DA L
TR

As at 31 December 2019

120208128318 201912 A31H

Valuation ~ Valuation Valuation  Valuation

technique-  technique- technique-  technique-

Quoted market non-market Quoted market non-market

market  observable  observable market  observable  observable

price inputs inputs price inputs inputs
(level 1) (level 2) (level 3) Total (level 1) (level 2) (level 3) Total

hERE- T -

hEsE- Fts 7 - JEiiss

THEAHE THE T ) =

THEEE HAME BAHE THRE WAME GAME
E-® EZH E=H /o GE-H G2 GER st
AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$'000  AUS'000  AUS'000  AU$'000  AUS$'000
FAT TR TR TR T T T T

Trade receivables at fair value AT BN

through profit or loss A EE = 4,153 = 4,153 = 3,786 = 3,786

For financial instruments not quoted in active
markets, the Group uses a valuation technique
such as present value techniques, comparison to
similar instruments for which market observable
prices exist and other relevant models used by
market participants. These valuation techniques
use both observable and unobservable market
inputs (Level 2).

Trade receivables relate to concentrate sales
that are still subject to price adjustments where
the final consideration to be received will be
determined based on prevailing London Metals
Exchange (“LME”) metal prices at the final
settlement date. Sales that are still subject to
price adjustments at balance sheet date are fair
valued by applying a discounted cash flow model
incorporating credit risk and forward pricing to
estimate the present value of the final settlement
price using the LME forward metals prices at
balance date.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

d)

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be
recognised if counterparties failed to perform as
contracted. The Group’s maximum exposures to
credit risk at reporting date in relation to each
class of financial asset is the carrying amount
of those assets as indicated in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit
risk predominantly arises from cash, cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments,
deposits with banks and financial institutions and
receivables.

While the Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of its products are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history, the Group
does have a concentration of credit risk in
relation to its gold concentrate sales in Finland
due to dependence for a significant volume of its
sales revenues on one buyer. There is generally
a six-week turnaround between shipment of
gold concentrate and payment from a gold
concentrate customer. The Company reduces
its credit risk in relation to gold concentrate
receivables in Finland by insuring 90% of the
nominal value of an assigned or internal invoice
with a reputable high credit quality Nordic
financial institution.

However, as invoices are raised at the end of
each month and shipments occur frequently
throughout the month, there is credit exposure to
the smelting company for the value of one month
of shipments as insurance coverage commences
when an invoice is raised. Credit risk further
arises in relation to financial guarantees given
to certain parties. Such guarantees are only
provided in exceptional circumstances and are
subject to Board approval.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

AR e B IRE (D)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 23. E@MI A @
d)  Credit risk (Cont’d) d EERRE (&)
In relation to managing other potential credit 128 M B AN B A5 & | 77
risk exposures, the Group has in place policies [ AEECHIEMEBABGR 5§
that aim to ensure that derivative counterparties TERERIT A T AR 5 ¥ F KB
and cash transactions are limited to high credit ERGERNESEEERERM
quality financial institutions and that the amount YA > T BT BR AT — R
of credit exposure to any one financial institution TR G SRR
is limited as far as is considered commercially FIHELRLHEENFRA R
appropriate. The credit quality of financial assets BT AR BEN 2/ E ENE
that are neither past due nor impaired can be BHERAI2E MRS EaTak (40
assessed by reference to external credit ratings A) NARBF T EIRER
(if available) or to historical information about 5 RELTEHAS
counterparty default rates:
2020 2019
20205 20194
AU$’000 AU$'000
FRT T#T
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEY
Counterparties with BI85 B VAR ¥F 77
external credit ratings
AA- AA- 14,352 8,182
A A - -
Total cash and cash equivalents  Bi<p & B <5 55 Y 407 14,352 8,182
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMtEWGRE
Counterparties with A IS 15 BFFARAGE F 77
external credit ratings
AAA AAA 782 532
AA- AA- - 2
A+ A+ - =
A- A- - =
Counterparties without SN ES 15 BFFAR I F 77
external credit ratings
Counterparties with B R BFTT
no defaults in the past 5,496 5,415
Total trade and other receivables & %) F Ho Al i W ik 48 45 6,278 5,949

For the purposes of determining credit exposures
on receivables, receivable amounts that have
been factored are evaluated against the credit
rating of the factoring bank, where the factored
amount is insured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

AR e B HARIRE (D)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 23. ERITA (@)
d) Credit risk (Cont’d) d) EERAK (8)
2020 2019
20205 20194F
AUS$’000 AU$'000
FiRT TFHT
Environmental and other bonds IBIEREMEEF S
Counterparties with BB (5 B PRI EF 77
external credit ratings
AAA AAA 5,544 5,289
Counterparties without FE S S 15 ERFARIGE F 77
external credit ratings
Counterparties with BN REHFTT
no defaults in the past - -
Total trade and other receivables & 5 5 F A JE U 2 T8 4828 5,544 5,289
e) Interest Rate Risk e) ) = @ b
At balance date, the Group had the following REEH AEEEALTH
financial assets and liabilities exposed to interest B ) 2 e By LR W 45 78 2% B 4B
rate risk that are not designated as cash flow R BRE E K AE
hedges:
2020 2019
20205 20194
Floating  Fixed Average Floating  Fixed Average
interest interest int. interest interest int.
rate rate Total  rate % rate rate Total  rate %
T T
RPAE BEEHE Mt R FHAE EEME 0 EH RE%
Financial assets EHEE
Cash and cash equivalents B KIH S FEY 14,352 - 14,352 - 8182 - 8182  0.83%
Trade receivables - fair value {73 F-{E 3 AfB %
through profit or loss % 5 I WGIOE 4,153 - 4153 - 3,786 - 3,786 -
Environmental bonds BIMES 5,544 - 5544 - 5289 - 5289 =
24,049 - 24,049 - 17,257 - 17,257 -
Financial liabilities Et=L
Interest bearing liabilities & & & - 3,000 3,000 4.00% - 6000 6000 4.00%
Lease liabilities HEARE = 364 364 = = 307 307 =
- 3,364 3,364 - - 6,307 6,307 -

The Group’s policy is to manage its exposure to
interest rate risk by holding cash in short term,
fixed and variable rate deposits with reputable
high credit quality financial institutions.

The Group constantly analyses its interest rate
exposure. Consideration is given to potential
renewals of existing positions, alternative
financing and/or the mix of fixed and variable
interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

f)

Foreign exchange risk

As the Group sells its bullion and gold
concentrate in USD and the majority of costs
are denominated in Swedish Krona (SEK) and
Euro (EUR), an appreciating EUR and SEK, or
a weakening USD exposes the Group to risks
related to movements in the USD:SEK and
USD:EUR exchange rates.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The risk can
be measured by performing a sensitivity analysis
that quantifies the impact of different assumed
exchange rates on the Group’s forecast cash
flows.

As part of the risk management policy of the
Group, financial instruments (foreign exchange
forwards) may be used from time to time to
reduce exposure to unpredictable fluctuations
in the USD:SEK and USD:EUR exchange rates.
Within this context, programs undertaken are
structured with the objective of minimising the
Group's exposure to these fluctuations.

The value of any financial instruments at any
point in time will, in times of volatile market
conditions, show substantial variation over the
short-term. The facilities provided by the Group's
various counterparties do not contain margin
calls.

The Company and Group's financial performance
is also affected by movements in AUD:SEK and
AUD:EUR. In accordance with the requirements
of International Financial Reporting Standards,
exchange gains and losses on intercompany
loans that do not form part of the Company’s net
investment in foreign operations are recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 23.

f)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

f)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company did not enter or hold any foreign
exchange derivatives. At balance date, the Group
had the following significant exposure to foreign

currencies:

USD exposure

Entity with Euro functional
currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Entity with AUD functional
currency

Trade payables

Entity with SEK functional
currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Trade payables

Net USD Exposure

EUR exposure

Entity with AUD functional
currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade payables

Intercompany loan

Entity with SEK functional
currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade payables

Net EUR Exposure

AUD exposure

Entity with EUR functional
currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Net AUD Exposure

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE %

i3

AR A A

E SN
L{BTT(E 2 D) 5E R0 E it
Be kB eEEY

5 IEWGIIE

LU (F 2 DD 6E B MBI B
B 5 B ROE

L 50 B (F 25 2 E B Y
B

B kB2 EEY

5 2 WG IE
=) SR E/eL

SE TR B A

BX 7T LB
LU (F 2 0 6E B B B

BRekBHeFEY

H 5 e 7R0E

5 [ P 2 ) PR B K

L Fit B 5 I E 2 T aE B AT
"

B R BEFEEY

=) SNE/e

BX T R B A

BT LR
L{BTT(E 2 DD 6E R0 B A

BE Rk BeEEY
H 5 EWGRIE

T B 7 A

AR e B HARIRE (D)

ERTA (@&

SMEEREBE (48)

HE2020FE12H31HIEEE
W /A= 0 A IRV & = =R = 1D
EMAETE - REEH AEH

B RAIE KN
2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$’000
F#ET T
9,991 4,636
12,480 7,592
9) -
74 364
58 452
(7,571) (4,068)
15,023 8,976
10 10
95 (4)
13,714 22,360
2 —
(6) (14)
13,815 22,352
1 1
359 359
360 360
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

f)

g)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

HKD exposure AT b

Entities with AUD functional

currency HIE A
Trade payables =07 AN
Interest bearing liabilities FFEAaE
Net HKD Exposure 78 T b T A

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to movements in the gold
price. As part of the risk management policy
of the Group, a variety of financial instruments
(such as gold forwards and gold call options) may
be used from time to time to reduce exposure
to unpredictable fluctuations in the project
life revenue streams. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company did not enter or
hold any commodity derivatives (31 December
2019: nil).

The Group is exposed to commodity price
volatility on the sale of gold in concentrate,
which is priced on, or benchmarked to, open
market exchanges, specifically the London Metal
Exchange (“LME”). The exposure is outlined as
trade receivables — fair value through profit or
loss in note 5.
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23.

L{BTT(E 2 D) BE BRI

R T A (&)

f)

g)

51 BB ELBE (48)

2020 2019
20205 20194F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FiRT FHIT
(2) (134)
- (3,293)
(2) (3,427)
7 Gn B A8 &L %

7R 5 E TE] 6 < 5 Bl Y JE B o
1 72 A B8 [ Ja) B 5 B B SR Y —
B4y AS B [ AT AE AN H &
HESmMTE (WESREER
HE R » DUREKIEE &
Ay UR 2 1 R AS AT TE 3 Y
fgro & 222020 F12 A31H 1L
A NN T VA= S = R
o] B AT AE T Boo (20194E12H
31H : f#) o

A B2 [ 1A 6 8 ik E o IRE D
B v o AR BN R R
E i AR IR 8 B T 85 252 5 e (O
HEmA &2 (Hase
JB 52 5 P 1)) B 25 FLEE T E
18 = 7 [BA) oL o B 2 7 B 3 5 79
5 TE WK TH — 12 2 P {E 5 AR

2 FHR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

h) Sensitivity analysis

The following tables summarise the sensitivity
of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
to interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.
Had the relevant variables, as illustrated in the
tables, moved, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit and equity would have
been affected as shown. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis for the prior year.

31 December 2020

AR e B HARIRE (D)

23.

ERIA @)

hy ®HRESH

NI 5 RS M A A 1

T B 15 B 2R i B B A1 BEE JeL B

A BURK S o 1R PR ﬁﬁ%

“E“ﬁ Ff B A 5% B 4 5

T %ﬁémﬂ&% R4
%%&MT%T)Fiﬁﬁ

HE ] FE P AT 5 A o

2020128318

Financial assets EMEE
Cash and cash equivalents B4 K&

Trade receivables — fair value %/ E{EEE A

through profit or loss BENE S
JE R IH
Government bonds BURE%
Total (decrease)/increase /'\) el
#ar
31 December 2019
Financial assets TRHEE
Cash and cash equivalents B B4
Trade receivables — fair value %/ E{EEE A
through profit or loss B 5
JE R IA
Government bonds BURE%
Total (decrease)/increase /") Vg bl
“a%

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A R S A

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk

-0.25% +0.25%

FIERE B

-0.25% -0.25%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
et gy gl ¥
Note AU$’000 AU$’000 AU$'000 AU$’000
FifaE FET FiET TFET FiET
1 (36) (36) 36 36
2 (10) (10) 10 10
4 (14) (14) 14 14
(60) (60) 60 60

20194E12H31H

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk

-0.25% +0.25%

GRS GRS

-0.25% +0.25%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
gl fea i i
Note AU$000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$000
et T T T T
1 (20) (20) 20 20
2 (9) ) 9 9
4 (13) (13) 13 13
(42) (42) 42 42
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222 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

h) Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)
31 December 2020

AR e B IRE (D)

23. ERTA (&)

h) B E 2 (48)
20202512831H

Foreign exchange Foreign exchange

-10% +10%
ShEE hEE
-10% +10%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
bl i bl i
AU$'000 AU$000 AU$'000 AU$'000
TR F®T FET FET
(1,008) (1,008) 1,008 1,008
(1,263) (1,263) 1,263 1,263
(3,212) (3,212) 3,212 3,212
59 59 (59) (59)
(5,424) (5,424) 5,424 5,424

2019412 H31H

Foreign exchange

Foreign exchange

Note
BifaE
Financial assets TREE
Cash and cash equivalents B e Bl
FEEY 1
Trade and other receivables & % bt A
JEWERIA 2
Intercompany loans BN
B 3
Financial liabilities THaRE
Interest bearing liabilities & & & &
Total (decrease)/increase (b)) /Han
31 December 2019
Note
Bt
Financial assets STRBEE
Cash and cash equivalents &R E
EEY 1
Trade and other receivables & 5 & HAth
JE W R IA 2
Intercompany loans EE A
B 3
Financial liabilities ETRaE
Interest bearing liabilities &+ & {&
Total (decrease)/increase G&b) /#m
Har
1. Cash and cash equivalents include deposits at call at

floating and short-term fixed interest rates.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FE %

w A R A A

-10% +10%
AN HMNE
-10% +10%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
il i i Al i
AU$000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU $’00£)
T T T T
(501) (501) 501 501
(804) (804) 804 804
(1,961) (1,961) 1,961 1,961
329 329 (329) (329)
(2,937) (2,937) 2,937/ 2,937

1. BeRESEEWLERTE
5 7 0 5 ) L 0 3
KK o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

h)

SenSItIVIty analysis (Cont’d)
Trade receivables include AU$5.0 million (2019:
AU$4.2 million) of gold in concentrate and gold
doré receivables denominated in USD. Subsequent
to year end, the Company received payment for all
USD denominated gold concentrate and doré trade
receivables.

3. Intercompany loans are denominated in AUD, SEK
and EUR. Though these loans are eliminated upon
consolidation, changes in the value of the loans due
to movements in exchange rates will influence the
consolidated result, since exchange gains or losses
on intercompany loans that do not form part of a
reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign operation
are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss.

4. Interest bearing environmental cash bonds that have
historically been deposited with Swedish and Finnish
government authorities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities
of the Group and the Group’s subsequent ability
to meet its obligations to repay its financial
liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Consolidated Entity’s objective is to maintain
a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank loans and
equity raisings.

The contractual maturities of the Group’s
financial liabilities are as follows:

Within one year —HERN
Within a period of more than ~ —4E LI _F{H AR
one year but not exceeding I

two years

Management and the Board monitor the Group's
liquidity reserve on the basis of expected
cash flow. The information that is prepared by
senior management and reviewed by the Board
includes:

. Bi-annual cash flow budgets; and

o Bi-annual cash flow forecasts.
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AR e B HARIRE (D)

23. ERMIHE &)

h)

B

mmrﬁm%@
B 5 W K TE B E DUSE T EHE
1) 0 055 B e &5 4 B WK IES .0
HEMBIT (20194F 1 4.2 E MW
JB) o REERE AN A U EI Al
AUFETFHEN S E L& E
& H 5 MW IE 1A 3K o

3. S Py 0 A R B R AT ~ i
SR BT AHE © S 7% HRK
TR & B E IRe A Al (B b A TE
SR E 5| BN B R E 2 B R
HiraXsEtvE NN
IR A A T AN S T R
— BB o3 A SR B A E R R
W 90 i 2 B S PR AE AR S 1R 2 R
FhifERE ©

4. i A7 O T BB 25 T Y A
M B BRIRBL B (55 o

MEE T AR

TENE & JE AR B A5 B 5
MEE A EEERETER
BEBHE M a ErEE S -

MOBEBEEREBERIR
TERERAEE#HESHHE

S VRN B S AR A o
AEESHAENSHRIHH
(N
2020 2019
20205 20194F
AU$’000 AU$'000
TRt FIT
7,319 7,320
3,217 6,555
10,536 13,875

EHEREREGRBANEE
I B B PR SR 9 I BN e Rk
i o | e AR B E AR I
HEFRNWER L

. FEHRER
. AT B i = TR

RETHEE ; &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

24.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER PERIOD END

(i)

(i)

Repayment of Loan Facility

On 6 January 2021, the Company made a
voluntary prepayment of AU$3.01 million
(including interest payable to that date) to repay
the balance remaining on its Loan Facility. The
Loan has a redraw facility and is available until
30 June 2022.

Placement of shares

Pursuant to the placing agreement (“Placing
Agreement”) dated 7 January 2021 entered into
between the Company and the placing agent,
a maximum of 21,000,000 ordinary shares in
the share capital of the Company (the “Shares”)
would be issued at HKD2.05 per Share (the
“Placing Price”) to the placees (the “Placement”).

The Placing Price represented (i) a premium
of approximately 2.50% over the closing price
of HK$2.00 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 7 January 2021; and (ii) a discount
of approximately 9.61% to the average closing
price of approximately HK$2.268 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five (5)
consecutive trading days immediately preceding
the date of the Placing Agreement. As announced
by the Company, all the conditions of the
Placement had been fulfilled and the completion
took place on 22 January 2021. A total of
20,000,000 Shares were issued on 22 January
2021.

To the best of the knowledge, information,
and belief of the Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, the placees (and their
respective ultimate beneficial owners, if
applicable) are third parties independent of the
Company and its connected persons. Details of
the Placement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 7 January 2021 and
22 January 2021. The net proceeds of the
Placement was approximately AU$6.62 million
(or HK$39.74 million). The net Placing Price,
after deducting such fees, costs, and expenses,
is therefore approximately AU$0.33 per Share
(HK$1.99 per Share) under the Placement. The
Company would apply the entire net proceeds
from the Placement for payment of the additional
environmental bonds, the timing of which is
ultimately determined by the relevant authority
but is anticipated to be within 12-months from
the Placement completion date.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

FiE

#

b

A

R 2~ #A

AR e B IRE (D)

24.

HARBEXRFE
iy MHEEERME

(i)

R2021FE1H6H » KA H H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

25.

PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURE

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment in subsidiaries
Intercompany loans

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Interest bearing liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Interest bearing liabilities

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

x‘xE‘

" A R A A

25.

MENEE
BRekBEeFEY
55 B L Ath B YRR
oA &

RBEEEE

FRBEE
UE DY &L
o0 FH 5

BRE B A7
LEEAAFHEX

IFREBEEME
BERE

AR

H 5 B A B A KA
i

FHEAME

/)lLifJﬁfﬁﬁ@AgE

FERBER
i
HEAME

FRBEBEEE
BEHEER
BEERE

*4» va

HHRA
fif e
AR

B R

AR e B HARIRE (D)

BAGIERNE

2020 2019
20204 20194
AU$’000 AU$'000
FiRT TIT
2,189 33
90 83

75 36
2,354 152
146 213

161 201
26,842 21,522
18,874 19,572
46,023 41,508
48,377 41,660
1,293 557
158 353

39 64
1,490 974
149 122
3,124 6,454
3,273 6,576
4,763 7,550
43,614 34,110
133,991 133,991
434 (305)
(90,811) (99,576)
43,614 34,110
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

25.

PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURE (CONT’D)

At 1 January 2019

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive profit
for the period

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive profit
for the period

At 31 December 2020

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
BEE R A RS A

20191810

HIP A
HA AR & WA

ST 2 TR R

2019%12831H

72020F181H

HP A

Hthies & A

S8 7R 2 T M A

20208128318

AR e B IRE (D)

25. BATREEKE (&)

Convertible
Note
Contributed Accumulated Premium Other Total
Equity Losses Reserve Reserves Equity
AIEIRER
BRI RetiE RIERE HithfE & R
AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000
TR TFH#T TRTT F#T THT
133,991 (101,514) 2,068 (1,645) 32,900
- 1,938 - - 1,938
_ _ = (728) (728)
- 1,938 - (728) 1,210
133,991 (99,576) 2,068 (2,373) 34,110
133,991 (99,576) 2,068 2,373) 34,110
- 8,765 - - 8,765
- - - 739 739
- 8,765 - 739 9,504
133,991 (90,811) 2,068 (1,634) 43,614




Financial Summary

The results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years, as extracted from the Group’s
published Consolidated Financial Statements are set out below:

Results

Revenue

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

ES

Wi dak

E N T Al

DUR N4

Owners of the Company  AR/AFI#EA A

Basic earnings per share

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Equity attributable to

owners of
the Company

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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K EUE (8% B A 85 [ B 1) 38 2 0 5 5
®) WA

Year ended 31 December

BE12831HLEEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
20164F 20174 20184 20194 20204
AU$'000 AU$'000  AU$'000  AUS$'000  AU$’000
TIT THIT TFHTT FIIT FHET
55,039 41,270 37,850 53,073 69,255
5,363 (583) (9,531) 6,311 10,193
5,363 (583) (9,531) 6,311 10,193
6.04 (0.66) (9.90) 4.55 7.34
As at 31 December
12831H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
20164 20174 20184 20194 20204
AU$’000  AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$’000
FIT TFIT FIT FIT FET
50,432 50,349 62,750 78,633 85,397
(19,617) (18,990) (25,303) (35,269) (31,919)
30,815 31,359 37,447 43 364 53,478

Annual Report 2020
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Tenement Register
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Held at
31 December
2020
Project ID Tenement Name Type % Area ha
1420205
12A31H
I5H 4o HEERTE |E ARG % ERAE
SWEDEN
I B
Svartliden Svartlidengruvan K nr 1 EC 100 87.54
B PR ET
Fiboliden Faboliden K nr 1 EC 100 122.00
B PR T
2016:75 Faboliden nr 11 EP 100 836.26
By PRaT A8
FINLAND
S
Orivesi 2676 Orivesi MC 100 39.82
PRI ET
ML2013:0006 Sarvisuo 1-2 EP 100 41.10
B ERET AT 8
ML2015:0026 Sarvisuo 3 EP 100 46.51
k7
VA2020:0021 Ori RES 100 1,979.73
e
Jokisivu 7244 Jokisivu MC 100 48.32
PRIBRF T
KL2015:0005 Jokisivu 2 MC 100 21.30
PRUBAT T
KL2018:0010 Jokisivu 3 MC 100 8.97
PRUBAT F
ML2012:0112 Jokisivu 4-5 EP 100 85.76
EhREF AT
ML2017:0131 Jokisivu 7-8 EP 100 18.60
Bh R EF Al
ML2018:0082 Jokisivu 10 EPA 0 900.33
IRIERT P78 B 3R
Kaapelinkulma K7094 Kaapelinkulma MC 100 65.10
BRI 7
Uunimaki ML2020:0020 Uunimaki 1 EPA 0 89.22
BRIl 38 R 3R
Vammala 1895 Stormi MC 100 157.53
PRIBRFRT

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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=
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